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MACEDON RANGES CULTURAL HERITAGE AND LANDSCAPE STUDY

NAME: MATLOCK
221 MOUNT MACEDON ROAD, MOUNT MACEDON

TYPE: WALLS & GATES, GARDEN,

i



MACEDON RANGES CULTURAL HERITAGE AND LANDSCAPE STUDY

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ARFEA: GISBORNE
ESMAP REFERENCE: 596 AMG: 2.87,53.50
SURVEY DATE: 19934 .

MACEDON PARISH

CROWN ALLOTMENTS: 18/4

LANDSCAPE UNIT: T04

PRECINCT:
Mount Macedon Gardens & Forestry

HERITAGE RECOGNITION:

HISTORIC BUILDINGS REGISTER (R=Registered):

AUSTRALIAN HERITAGE COMMISSION&&'=Xominated, R=Raegistered):
NATIONAL TRUST OF AUSTRALIA (C=Classified, R=Recorded}:

NTAFILE NUMBER:
HISTORIC GARDENS INVENTORY: Y

CREATION DATE: . .
1921C- . .

STUDY HERITAGE VALUE: R

iMulr.iple clements in 2 site may have differing heritage values, listed in element order)
mporiant to the Shires of Romsey, Gisborne, Newham & Woodend

FIRST OR MAJOR OWNER/GCCUPIER:
CREED, GEORGE?

OTHER ASSOCIATIONS:

MCPHERSON, SIR WILLIAM
WALLING, EDNA

HISTORICAL THEMES REPRESENTED: 7,6

TOURISM & RETREATS (Formation of early retre=ats for the elite, the later guest houses, pleasure gardens, and recreation

areas; also the summer houses
GARDENS & LANDSCAPE (Experiments in horiculiure, garden creation, gardenesque landseapes, dispiay gardens)

HISTORY:

Matlocl& was built for George Creed ¢1521 and later owned by Sir William McPherson (premier
1928-%)". Edna Walling is thought to have worked on the garden.

Jean Milbourne recalled that the 9 acre ;\iatiocl&was once Charles Cogger’s horse paddock, having
been originally granted to P Egan and P Howe®. The founder of Woolworths in Australia, GWP
Creed, purchased it many years later and built the first stage of this house ¢1919-21°, Sir William
McPherson reputedly built the notable gatz and fence.

Apart {rom his political career, McPhersen was known for his 25,000 pound donation which aided
the creation of the Emily McPherson School of Domestic Economy, also as a Compissioner of the
Melbourne Harbour Trust and Chairman of the Melbourne Chamber of Commerce”™.

Reputedly Edna Walling redesigned the garden, installinga circular drive in front of the house and
presumably designing the gates and fence 2t the same time™. Bob Mitchell was the gardener there for

both Creed and McPherson”.

Y

1 Hutton,22-3, 12-

2 Milbourne, 78,123, 143

3 ibid,; Hutton gives c1921
4 ibid.

5 ibid.

& ibid.



MACEDON RANGES CULTURAL HERITAGE AND LANDSCAPE STUDY

DESCRIPTION:

Matlock house shows two construction periods ¢1921, ¢1940- the former with box windows and
rough-cast stucco (north,east) on the ground level and the latter as the upper level with weather-

boarding, and roof gables.

Cad

CONTEXT:
Matlock garden is an important contributing element in the Mount Macedon garden precinct.

LANDSCAPE:

Much of the garden to the east of the house is older and more formal, with pathways, terraces, ¥i-
burnum sp., former tennis court, with associated high rubble wall facing to the south, and distant
views to Melbourne. There are few large trees in this section (fire damage) except for a Douglas fir
at the corner of the court.

The long drive extends from the west to the south side of the house and on to Sangsters Lane. Ma-
ture trees line the drive including large elms, beeches, copper beeches, three redwoods, chestnuts,

rhododendrons, azaleas and cedars,

Stonework abounds through the garden (overgrown), along with quariz pebbles to the steps to the
resurfaced house west terrace (c1921). A notable rubble-stone fence lines the front boundary, with
cylindrical posts with domed tops, the house name set in cement on one and 2 pair of notable iron

gates (relocated?).

SIGNIFICANCE:

The Matlock garden is well preserved in part, possessing mature ornamental plantings and notable
stonework, particularly the entry gates and fence. [t contributes to the significant Mount Macedon
gardens precinct and its present form reputedly is the result of design work by the renowned Edna
Walling and the patronage of noted persons such as Sir William McPherson.
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MACEDON RANGES CULTURAL HERITAGE AND LANDSCAPE STUDY

NAME: TANAH MERAH ‘ :
445 MOUNT MACEDON ROAD, MOUNT MACEDO! HO 1'® 7

TYPE: GARDEN,WAILL




MACEDON RANGES CULTURAL HERITAGE AND LANDSCAPE STUDY

LOCAL GOVERNMENT AREA: GISBORNE

ESMAP REFERENCE: 596 AMG: 2.87,33.60
SURVEY DATE: 19934 )
MACEDON PARISH

LANDSCAPE UNIT: T04

PRECINCT:
Mount Macedon Gardens & Forestry

HERITAGE RECOGNITION:

HISTORIC BUILDINGS REGISTER (R=Rezistered):

AUSTRALIAN HERITAGE COMMISSION éN=Nomina:ed, R =Registered):
NATIONAL TRUST OF AUSTRALIA (C=Classifled, R=Recorded):

NTA FILE NUMBER: . :
HISTORIC GARDENS INVENTORY: Y

CREATION DATE:
1957¢- : | L

~ STUDY HERITAGE VALUE: L?

(Multiple elements in a site may have differing hesitage values, listed in elemcht otder)
Important to the Gisborne & Macedon District.

*Further investigation required

FIRST OR MAJOR OWNER/OCCUPIER:

TAYLOR, CHARLES

HISTORICAL THEMES REPRESENTED: 7
GARDENS & LANDSCAPE (Experiments in honiculiure, garden creation, gardenesque landscapes, display gardens)

HISTORY:

Created from 1957 for and by Charles Taylor on the site of Gunyah (burnt), Tanah Merah was burnt
in the 1983 fires but is still owned by the Taylors". The property was initially only used for summer
but is now a permanent home. Taylor radiscovered the original terraces and avenues (after advised
of their presence by Lord Baillieau) and built new planting and walling around them. He also con-
structed a glass house. He was aided by Marco Speck (Swiss horticulturalist) and George Firth®,
Among the extensive stonework, Speck built a large rubble stone retaining wall for the croquet lawn
EcompieZed 1967) near a fern gully at the north- eas: of the garden and the old rock walling on the
ront was rebuilt in part (old section north end from lych gate)”. The maple walk is renowned.

Other trees include the large golden Irish vews, larch, Disanthus cercidifolius (Japanese), many com-
ing from the influence of gverseas travel. Taylor built one of the first Japanese gardens in the coun-
try after the Second War . More recear work has included the use of large boulders at the front

gateway as carried out by Matt Taylor,

Planting includes a sweet chestnut just porth of the house, a honevsuckle hedge, Coroneaster
horizontalis, golden cypress and flax north of the glasshouse, Japanese flowering cherries on a ter-
race nearby, an old walnut tree and rhodedendron, weeping elms, old magnolias, Viburmum sp., lin-
den trees, and on the old north wall are large New Zealand flax. Also in the north are hollies,
Japanese maples, birches, copper beech. and oaks, On the creek are huge blackwoods with musk and

hazel along the creek itself,

alfer

Hutton,p.22-3

ﬁ_rs com Ken Taylor
Milbourne p,132
pers com K'Taylor

4l b=



MACEDON RANGES CULTURAL HERITAGE AND LANDSCAPE STUDY

DESCRIPTION:
This is an older garden badly affected by the 1983 fires. Former garden terraced with croquet lawn.
Now replanted.

s

SIGNIFICANCE:

Tanah Merah is significant for its contribution to the important Mount Macedon gardens precincr,
with its mature and unusual plantings, and has social significance, in part, as what is thought to be
the first Japanese garden built during the anti- Japanese sentiment of post World War Two and
hence the first of a large number of similar gardens which were in vogue during the 1960s. Its design

erpetuates and links with the tradition of the older gardens on Mount Macedon and reflects a stud-
led attempt at restoration of this tradition by its designer, Charles Taylor.
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MACEDON RANGES CULTURAL HERITAGE AND LANDSCAPE STUDY

NAME: DUNEIRA
460 MOUNT MACEDON ROAD, MOUNT MACEDON

I!E

T

e

HOUSE, GATE HOUSE, FARM COMPLEX, GARDEN, TREES

e




MACEDON RANGES CULTURAL HERITAGE AND LANDSCAPE STUDY

LOCAL GOVERNMENT AREA: GISBORNE
ESMAP REFERENCE: 904 AMG: 2.86,58.59
SURVEY DATE: 1993-4 )

MACEDON PARISH
CROWN ALLOTMENTS: 4,5,10,11/6

LANDSCAPE UNIT: To4

PRECINCT:
Mount Macedon Gardens & Forestry

HERITAGE RECOGNITION:

HISTORIC BUILDINGS REGISTER {R=Registered):

AUSTRALIAN HERITAGE COMMISSION (iN=Nominated, R=Registered): N

NATIONAL TRUST OF AUSTRALILA (C=Classified, R=Recorded): C,C Register of Significant Trees
NTA FILE NUMBER: Significant Tree

HISTORIC GARDENS INVENTORY: Y

CREATION DATE: o .
1875-90c ' .
STUDY HERITAGE VALUE: S

gMul:{ple elements in a site may have differing heriage varlucs, list=d in element order)
mporiant to Victoria

FIRST OR MAJOR OWNER/OCCUPIER:

OFFICER, SUETONIUS HENRY

DESIGNER:
POWELL, LEV]

-

HISTORICAL THEMES REPRESENTED: 6,7

TOURISM & RETREATS (Formation of early r=treats for the elite, the later guest houses, pleasure gardens, and recreation

areas; aiso the summer houses) .
GARDENS & LANDSCAPE (Experiments in horticulture, garden creation, gardenesque landscapes, display gardens)

HISTORY:

Henry Suetonius Officer reputedly acquired the Duneira site from 1872-187? (Blocks 4,5,10,11,14)
paying some 84 for 38 acres but rate listings give Robert Officer as the owner . '

Henry Suetonius Officer (1830-1883) - _

QOfficer was born in Hullgreen, New Norfolk, Tasmania 1830, the son of Sir Robert & Lady Officer.
He was educated in Edinburgh with his brother, Charles, and returned to the colonies, seeking gold
in Victoria but eventually settling for pastoralism in company with his brothers and Charles Miles®.
They managed stations in the Wimmera and the Riverina, James marrying in 1866 and commencing -
construction of a 20 room homestead at Murray Downs & Willakool, two adjoining properties
fronting the Murray River. After experimentation with irrigation, via steam pumps and windmills,
he was able to develop extensive orchards and crops”. He was also, like his brother, interested in
acclimatisation, having developed an ostrich farm on his property (Charlgs was a council member of
the Zoological & Acclimatisation Society for 10 years, president in 1837)".

Siverson, Duneira, essav for & Tibbetts, MU Architecture Schoo 1968, p3f cites V&M V2,p.496-7 {copy held
MM&GHS); sce RB1873-1,535

1

2 ibid. i

3 V&MWY2p.49ef
4 ibid.



MACEDON RANGES CULTURAL HERITAGE AND LANDSCAPE STUDY

Blighted by iliness, Suetonius reputedly moved to Leighwood, Toorak (Melbou{ne) in 1881, having
erected the first stage of Duneira at Mount Macedon, but died two years later . However his son,
Henry jnr. was born at South Yarra in 1869 and his next child, Jessie, was born at Macedgn in 1877,
indicatng that he was in residence at both  places prior to the dates previously supposed™

Sustonius probably commissioned the first stage of Duneira to be erected as a summer house be-

tween c1§ 4-6. The architect Levi Powell is thought to have designed a house for him there around -

that date”. The first improyements listed on the site were stables in 1874 when Robert Officer was
rated as owning the site’. ‘The house was reputedly not occupied regularly until c1881 when
Suetonius moved to Toorak™. However it appears he and his family were in residence at Duneira by

1877.

When Suetonius died in 1883 his wife, Mary Lillias Rigg Officer (nee Cairns), of Glenbervie,
Glenferrie Road, Toorak was the co- executor of the estate, with merchant Robert Harper; she is
the rate occupier in 1883° Mrs Officer was the sister of Mrs Robert Harper (Huntly Burn) and Mrs
John C Lloyd (Montpelier, later Timsbury): all three houses were reputedly built in the same pe-
riod; Duneira’s valuation increased from 133 w0 180 in 1883, indicating improvements were made

then".

The house bricks for the first stage were said to have come from the Macedon Brick Kiln (once near
the Macedon railway station, set up i51 ¢1888-97) with external walls buiit in 14" Flemish bond fro,%'m
stop-moulded bricks (9 inch by 2.1/2)". The bricks were reputedly carted from Macedon by Cogger™”,
The footings were of bluestone and reputedly dressed sandstone blocks also survive, suggesting that
the first stage was face brick with stone quoins and the next renovation ¢1888 added wings and a ce-
ment coating to the whole complex. Floor frames were reputedly supported on stone dwarf walls
and joists were 6x2.1/2 inch jarrah, with flooring being 6 inch pine”". Seaweed was apparently used
for ceiling insulation™.

The servants’ wing verandah was skillion in form with timber posts with classical capitals. The main
verandah had coupifr‘d osts (rebuilt with single posts) a panelied frieze and slimnit}r capitals set just
under the frieze rail*”. The balustrade may have been of single cast-iron balusters™. : :

Just prior to the sale to the speculator, James Smith Reid in 1850, and during the occupation of Ed-
ward Dyer, major additions were made 10 the house complex and a reputedly a caretaker’s [odge was
;1)%%%:(‘533! the gate (survives, altered c1920s) but this appears to have been added by Reid in the early
The added rooms were reputedly: billiard (32°x24") and dining rooms, kitchen, servants bathroom,
service block with 5 rooms (engine room, dairy, pantry, store, boiler room, built of Northcote ma-
chine made 9" brickwotk). Damp proof coursing was used in these additions compared to the slate
of the first stage and acetylene gas (engine room) was thought used for lighting from this period, as
reticulated in 1.1.2" mains and 1/2 inch branches to internal and some external verandah lights*®,
Cast-iron elaborately detailed water radiators were also used, with hot water pumped from the
boiler room, and later a duplicate boiler allowed hot water to be reticulated taps in the house

The description in rate books expands to villa and cotiages (on 37 acres) for the first time under
Reid in clggs but the annual valuation had already peaked in 1888 a1 200 in the occupation of Ed-
ward Dyer™". An Edward Dyer was listed at that time as a fruiterer in Burwood Road, Hawthorn™”.

'

-
.

—

ibid,; Siverson- Officer died 26.7.83
see Ploneers {]
AT

RBi874-5,557
 Siverson cffu RB1873-5 Robert Officer owner. 1874 Sustenius occupier, RB1874-3,357 MAV increased from 30 to
- 120 1873-6 and 160 RB1876- 7,492; RB1576 villa & (out)offices; Legacy brochurz .
Siverson; RB1888,232 NAV 180 ; property {ile note clipping The Leader 12.12.91; Pioneers Index -death not
registzred in Victoria? L :

ibid,
RB1885, 209; RB188s, 209
ig@g; sec also Woodend Star extracts MM&GHS

1010,
ibid.

ibid.

MMEGHS photo P2929
14 ibid

15 Siversonm cites title 29.11.90 which gives roropf:-ny name; RB1391-2,276 description villa & 35 acres’, no cottage
16 ibid, notes switching via levers and pulieys on fome fittings . .

ibid.
18 F;BIBSS, P57 first 200 entry NAV 180 after ¢1894 for many years, Siverson claims 1890-1; RB18%4, 277; RB1891-2,
19 ‘WDi8912 )

[entaptende =17 - B R+ LSNP SO P B Lo

—
IO
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MACEDON RANGES CULTURAL HERITAGE AND LANDSCAPE STUDY

The water supply is from a concrete tank fzd by a spring. Outbuiidings include timber clad stables,
storerooms, blacksmith's shop, coachman’s room, milking bails, hay shed and a gresn house. The
stables (extended) were described as having had a shingled gabled roof (rear skillion) with loft en-
tered via an external siair at the north end”. [t had a blacksmith’s shop (altsred for garage c1941),
carriage and coachman’s rooms, two stoses and vertically boarded main doors”. The milking and hay
sheds had hipped roof forms and timber cladding and frame. The interior was white-washed”. The
greenhouse in the secret hedged garden is of 2 later date, with a timber frame built up on 11" cavity
brickwork walls, with a brick floor and heated water pipes under each shelf. The boiler is near the

entry’.

The Gisborne Gazette reporied on Duneira in 1903 under the heading of *A Popuiar Health Resort™:
‘Duneira certainly merits a few remarks though beautiful residences and grounds are by no means
rare in that locality.. (when Reid purchased it, it was ‘little better than a wilderness’ and he had
spared no expense to resiore it).. After passing the lodge at the main entrance, a broad serpentine
drive leads up 10 the house and from there the grounds are laid out in broad sloping lawns sur-
mounted with choice borders and fringed with trees which however do not interfere to any great ex-
tent with the view. ' ‘

There is of course no lack of flowers which grow luxuriantly on the mount but the great feature of
Duneira is the lawns, those open green expanses which delight the eye at all times of the year. the se-
cret of this perennial verdure is to be found in the copious water supply with which Macedon is
blessed (spring at rear of house, tapped by tunneling 40m into the hi}lf,_i/e.,grass grows up to base

of Monterey pines)..” .

During Reid’s time there, the valuation increased marginally in 1899-1900 and again spon after, with
Reid’s address being given as care of Rosstrevor Magill, South Australia, in ¢1909-10% JS Reid died
in 1922, leaving the properiy to the management of JS Reid junior (a chemist) and the merchant GL
Dewez of Sydney, his widow Martha Turnbull Reid and William Riggall’.

Reid was the son of the Rev. James Reid of Queensland but gained success as a journalist, starting
newspapers in gold mining areas such as Gymppi_e, Charters Towers, Etheridge and Wilcannia, NSW,
He was at Broken Hill when the Broken Hill P/L commenced, printing their prospectus. He became
a director of BHP". His occupation was listed as ‘speculator’ in the early 1900s°.

In the 1920s Mrs Martha Reid’s ‘little Eden’ was described by a touring group of horticulturalists,
thus: '

‘., a trim green lawn with magnificent Japanese cypress which was voted the finest in Australia;
nearby a splendid weeping elm caught the eye; the maples, beech and the horse chestnuts supply
fresh tints; majestic Oregon tower towards heaven...

Everywhere soft tinted rhododendrons and azaleas bloomed in the sunshine and near a fack garden
decked with flowers of every conceivable hue, myriad tinted tulips thrust up there heads.””.
Again, in 1927, the Victorian Nurserymens & Seedmens Association noted of Duneira: :
*..where probably the finest display of rhododendrons is to be seen; these and a magnificent speci-
men of Cupressus lawsoniana *Aurea’ caused us to linger longer than the specified time. The rock
garden dotied with a remarkable collection of alpines, -several linfllen trees and pendulous birches
were considered to be afeature unparalieled elsewhere in the State o

. Mrs Reid owned it until 1941, selling to Dr Alfred & Betty Alcock (nee N‘icho!as)'df Toorak, being
reputedly a gift from Alfred Nicholas. The auction was in December 1940 when Duneira was de-

scribed as a substantially constructed brick villa with slate roof containing spacious return verandah,
entrance hall, sitting, morning and dining rooms, an excellent billiard room, large glazed vestibule, 3
main bedrooms, two well appointed bathrooms, 4 maids bedrooms, maids' sitting room and bath-
room, well appointed kitchen, store rqqms and septic sewage, central heating, private gas service
and extensive outbuildings on 38 acres*”. The 500 metre elm-lined drive was said to be the longest
(privately owned?) elm avenue in Australia,

1 ibid.

2 ibid.,p24

3 ibid.

4 ipid. )

3 Crisborne Gazeqze 1903 coepv held MM&GHS

6 RB1909-10, 943; RB1900-01. 998 -

7 Siverson cites death date 10.1.22

8 MM&GHS clipping, see also Braemar

9 RB1911-12,932 .

10 Gisborfie Gazere 20.11.25 .
Il Gusporne Gazere 18.11.27 - :

iz Gardiner & Laing sale notice, MM &GHS, se2 photos; see also The Home 4.23; The Leader 1.12.23, 26.11.29; Womers

World 4,
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MACEDON RANGES CULTURAL HERITAGE AND LANDSCAPESTUDY

Extensive renovations followed the Alcock purchase including electricity, removal of the concave
and skillion roof timber ~ verandahs, enlarging of openings, conversion of the billiard room o a
lounge, new bathrooms in bedrooms, servanis rooms converted, larger kitchen and improved con-
fnection to dining, more water storage, covered way to link service wing with house, creation of a new
entry point from the courtyard, enlarged stable for cars with barn for machinery store, removal of
trees, and the replacement of previously gravelled paths and roads (with open brick drains) with
concrete and asphalt”. Mrs Alcock remarried (Stugrt Wickens) but maintained her interest in the:
garden, reputedly having created the ‘secret garden™. N

Mis Alcock resold to Keith Allen and R.Lowe in c19773. Keith Allan presumably replaced the ve-
randah, following his reported intention to do so in 1978".

Mr & Mrs Laurie Matheson purchased it in 1981, just prior to Matheson’s involvement in the
Ivanov, Combe affair which caused some controversy in Australia and the 1933 Hope Royal Com-
mission’. In the same period he was noted for a high speed dash in his Ferrari to save Duneira from
the 1983 fires™. _

Matheson was a trade commissioner to eastern Europe (1968-) and later via Heine Brothers (1972-)
and his own Commercial Bureau, he negotiated extensively with Russia over trade links’. Prior 10
this, while in the nravy, Matheson (then aged 33) had commanded the unit in search of Prime Minis-
ter Holt who disappeared at Cheviot beach in 1963°. He had been educated at Burnside orphanage
and later Yenco agricultural college, NSW~. Matheson is credited with having built the reproduc-
tion porch entrance from the court yard

UntiFrecently it was still owned by the widow of Laurence Matheson whose memorial (q.v.) at the
Macedon cemetery is so distinctive. The same artist (for the memorial) had proﬁﬁed two statues for
the garden depicting the Mathesons but after the recent sale, these were removed™”,

DESCRIPTION:
This 1s a large stuccoed and verandahed [taliznate villa built in stages with an extensive garden. The
roofing is both slate and corrugated iron, the verandah frieze is fretted from timber and the

balustrading is of cast-iron (posts replaced?). Openings have been altered.
Beyond the house yard are outbuildings including a vertical slab hut, with simply hipped roof (also
boarded section adjoining) which appears much older than other buildings on the site.

The picketed gateway aptpears original, along with the old gold- blocked sign, and the gate house (al-
though altered) is also of the house period.

CONDITION: }
Under the Alcock ownership: removal of the concave and skiflion roof timber verandahs, enlarging

of window openings, conversion of the billiard room to a lounge, new bathrooms in bedrooms, ser- .

vants rooms converted to guesi rooms, larger kitchen and improved connection 10 dining, more
water storage, covered way to link service wing with house, creation of a new entry point from the
courtyard, enlarged stable for cars with barn for machinery store, removal of trees, and the replace-
ment of previously gravelled ‘glzathslejnd roads (with open brick drains) with concrete and asphalt.
The fountain was added in the 19705~ , : _

CONTEXT: : .
Duneira is on of the best examples within what is Australia’s most significant grouping of hill-sta-

tion gardens. [ts proximity 1o other major sites like Alton, Sefton and Hascombe enhance its signifi-

cance.

ibid.: A.Hobbs pers.com.; MM&GHS sale pampilet shows verandah intact 1940
MMEGHS Beams, ‘Duneira at Mount Macedon' clipping :

ibid

MMEGHS Beams, ‘Duneira at Mount Macedon'

The Age 7.4.53

ibid.

ibid. ' :

ibid. -, -
ibid,

see The Herald 2.4.86 . :
P.Scm%oerhevn of Collingwood, source Jan Ziggante ph.2703757
MM&GHS Beams, ‘Duncira at Mount Macadon' 1973 clipping
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MACEDON RANGES CULTURAL HERITAGE AND LANDSCAPE STUDY

1IANDSCAPE:

The main garden elements are: sweeping lawns, box hedges, weeping beech and cherry, exiensive
hedges (hoily, laurel), 2 hedged ‘secret garden’ with green house, mature firs, elm and chestnut ave-
nues. There is aiso a fountain and a wide spreading weeping cherry tree (0 the rear of the house,
near the tennis court.

Significant Trees:

Ulmus x hollandica,avenue
Pruynus ‘Shirotag’

Albies procera

Ilex kingiana

SIGNIFICANCE:

Duneira is the grandest of the 19th century hill stations to survive, being designed in the Italianate
villa mode in contrast to the picturesque designs employed on coniemporary houses elsewhere on
Mount Macedon. Its occupiers have been prominent in the State and perhaps more than most other .
Mount Macedon properties, Duneira and its inhabitants have been much chronicled over the years
and, despite the aliered state of the garden and house, ample material exists-on both for historical
interpretation over a number of phases and ownerships.

Duneira forms an important part of the nation’s most significant group of hill-station gardens.
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MACEDON RANGES CULTURAL HERITAGE AND LANDSCAPE STUDY

NAME: CAMELS HUMP SIS
OFF MOUNT MACEDON ROAD, MOUNT MACEDON

TYPE: LANDFORM

578



MACEDON RANGES CULTURAL HERITAGE AND LANDSCAPE STUDY

LOCAL GOVERNMENT AREA: NEWHAM & WOODEND
ESMAP REFERENCE: 596 AMG: -
SURVEY DATE: 19934

NEWHAM PARISH
CROWN ALLOTMENTS: Reserve

LANDSCAPE UNIT: M03

HERITAGE RECOGNITION:

HISTORIC BUILDINGS REGISTER (R=Registerad):
AUSTRALIAN HERITAGE COMMISSION (N=Nominated, R=Registered):
NATIONAL TRUST OF AUSTRALILA (C={lassified, R=Recorded):

NTA FILE NUMBER:
HISTORIC GARDENS INVENTORY:

CREATION DATE:
STUDY HERITAGE VALUE: §

%—Mullipic elements in a site may have differing heritage values, listed in element order) | .
mportant to Victoria .

HISTORICAL THEMES REPRESENTED: 1,2,6,7

CULTURE CONTACT (Evidence of contact between Europeans and Aboriginals during exploration and early settlement)
AGRICULTURAL AND PASTORAL (Evidence of pastoraland sclection ¢ras, changes in agricuitural practices)
GARDENS & LANDSCAPE (Experiments in horticuiture, garden creation, gardenesque landscapes, display gardens)
TOURISM & RETREATS (Formation of early retreats for the elite, lhe [ater guest houses, pleasure gardens, and recreation

areas; also the summer houses)

HISTORY:

Camels Hump appears 10 have been identified by Hoddle in 1844 as Alexander’s Crown and subse-
quently became an early surveyor’s trig point’. This landform and Hanging Rock were also thought
to have religious significance to the Wurrunjerri tribe because of the sacred stones found there and
in the 186{5; a cave at the Hump is thought to have served as a hiding place for bushrangers and

their spoils

Camels Hump has alse been identified in scientific works by Skeats & Summers (1912), Edwards
(1938), Hills (1940), Wellman (1974}, King (1984) and Rosengreen (1993)°. EW Skeats and Dr
Summers led an excursion to the area in 1914 by the British Association of the Advancement of Sci-
ence, underscoring the cultural importance of Camels Hump as a subject for scientific investigation
over a long period .

The site has been a élopuiaz rock climbing and abseiling point since the earliest days of the sport in
the Victoria, the 1960s, and is siill very popular with climbers and {ourists, ‘

DESCRIPTION:
Apart {rom its distinctive shape and prominence when viewed from the north, Camels Hump has
been identified as a notable volcanic eruption point in the state”,

‘Viscous soda trachvte (solvsbergite) of Tertiary age extruded  through Devonian voleanic rocks
and solidified into a steep side mamelon. [t forms a regionally prominent landform resting as it does
on the Devonian Voleanics of the Macedon Ranges. The conspicuous weathering pattern is greatly
influenced by vertical cooling joints. The fresh rock is somewhat greenish in colour, but is generally

weathered 10 a greyish or brownish tint.’

CPORPIIO;

Milbourne, 14,42

ibid.

ibid.,159 .

VS, Geological Features- Melboune..
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CONTEXT:

Camels Hump is direcily related to the nearby Hanging Rock and forms a visual focus to the
Macedon Ranges as a whole when viewed from the notth, [ts origin is also linked with other volea-
nic outcrops which 1vpify the area topographically.

e

SIGNIFICANCE:

Camels Hump has scientific significance as ‘One of several unusual lava volcanoes that occur in this
area and one of the best examples of this volcanic type in Victoria™.

It also has a considerable visual presence in the landscape, particularly because of its proximity and
visual relationship to Hanging Rock which is of a similar origin. As such it has been identified on
early surveyors plans, used as an identifying landmark, provided the site for an early trig point, was
the source of sacred powers, a hiding place for fugitives and is known in the community for its dis-

tinctive form.

1 Gsv
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NAME: BIEN VENUTO ‘ L @-g
066 MOUNT MACEDON ROAD, WOODEND

TYPE: HOUSE, INTERIOR
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MACEDON RANGES CULTURAL HERITAGE AND LANDSCAPE STUDY

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ARFA: NEWHAM & WOQODEND
ESMAP REFTERENCE: 396 AMG: 2.85.38.62

SURVEY DATE: 19934 .

WOODEND PARISH

CROWN ALLOTMENTS: 3721

LANDSCAPE UNIT: T03

HERITAGE RECOGNITION:

HISTORIC BUILDINGS REGISTER (R=Regzistered):

AUSTRALIAN HERITAGE COMMISSION (N=Nominated, R=Registered):
NATIONAL TRUST OF AUSTRALIA (C=Classified, R=Recorded):
NTAFILE NUMBER:

HISTORIC GARDENS INVENTORY:

CREATION DATE:
1375,1908-

STUDY HERITAGE VALUE: R* .

%‘Muiiiple elements in a site may have differing heritage values, listed in element Ordgr):"/ N
mportant to the Shires of Romsey, Gisborne, Newham & Woodend

*Part Altered '

FIRST OR MAJOR OWNER/OCCUPIER:

BERRY, LYDIA & PERCY

OTHER ASSOCIATIONS:
MULHOLLAND, L‘fLARY

HISTORICAL THEMES REPRESENTED: 2,6,7

AGRICULTURAL AND PASTORAL (Evidencs of pastoral and selection eras, changes in agricultural practiges)
GARDENS & LANDSCAPE (Experiments in honiiculture, garden creation, gardenesque landscapes, display gardens)
TOURISM & RETREATS (Formation of early retreats for the elite, the fater guest houses, pleasure gardens, and recreation
areas; also the summer houses)

HISTORY:

Mary Mulholland (presumed widow of the grantes), lived at what was described as a cotiags in
Braemar Road during the 18390s°. Prior to that William Multholland, a bootmaker, labourer cum
farmer, occupied the property from ¢1875 with a house listed there from c1881%

Around 1908 the Berry family (Mrs [ Berry) acquired the farm and converted what is thought 1o
have been a century-old four-room house into a sanitarium by extensive additions and alterations”.
The sanitarium was run by nursing staff but little further was known of its function”.

Lydia Berry was the wife of the businessman and philatelist, Percy Berry (1871-1930) who was the
nephew of Henry Berry and the Queensland branch manager of the company until ¢1900 when he
came to Melbourne. It is likely that it was this family who developed this complex”.

Percy was born at Faversham, Kent and served with a number of wholesaling firms before coming to
Melbourne in 1889 to join the salt manufacturing firm of Henry Berry & Co,, his uncle’s firm, Once
established in Melbourne, he was president of the Whoiesale Merchants Association, member of the
Melbourne Chamber of Commerce, a-leading phiiatelist and councillor for the Eye & Ear Hospital,
a charitable role which followed {rom his uncle's precedents and Methodist enthusiasm. This latter

RB1897-8.198

RB1875,159 land Macedon Rd; RB13§1.174 house & fand, Macedon Rd
RB1998; Mrs Jackson, pers.com. cites Henry Bermy's nicces as source
see RB1908 . . .

see Gibney & Smith p.54 no other Berry wile with L starting given name

LA tatdtdr



MACEDON RANGES CULTURAL HERITAGE AND LA..NDSCXPE STUDY

role may have besn connected with the construction of this building as 3 sanitarium, possibly for
use by the hospital’s inmates, as was later the case with the Tye estate (q.v.)".

The firm, Henry Berry & Co. was originally a salt manufacturer but expanded as a general merchant,
wholesale grocer, butchers’ supplier and tea meschant with showrooms in Collins Street, Mel-
bourne, and bonded stores at the Australian whar{”.

The annual valuation rose in €1923-4 (54 10 200 pounds), when the  house was still owned by the”

Berry family, and it was presumafly during that period that the billiard room was ‘built®. This was
reputedly for a billiards champion”.

'

DESCRIPTION:

Bien Venuto is a large stuccoed villa, set back from the road and surtounded by mature plantings
which include Monterey cypress and pines and deciduous mature exotics. The house is also visible
from Plants Lane, ;

The house appears to be from three construction stages, the first in the mid 0 late 19th century.
However, from the front view, the house takes on a hipped roof and verandahed Federation Bunga-
low look, indicating massive renovations c¢1908. Further additions include the notable billiard
ropm wing, added on the south in the 1920s in a semi-pavilion hipped roof form. The timber veran-
dah brackets are distinctive, as are the numerous heavy cemented chimney shafis with their barreled

tops and the corner window bay. :

The 1920s interior elements are notable, with communicating living areas, a billiard room with ba-
salt rubble fireplaces and oak exposed timbers (owner was reputedly a champion billiard player).

Nearby to the east is what is thought to have been the former coach house, now converted to a
house and resembling the original in form only.

CONDITION: -

Given the construction stages already outlined, the house is externally generally near original to the
last stage of the 1920s, except for some changes in detail.

CONTEXT:

Bien Venuto is the only early complex in this part of the rural fringe between Woodend town and
the Macedon Ranges. It overlooks the extensive hedging of Shirley Park and Mount Macedon.

LANDSCAPE: :

The driveway is lined with mainly conifers, Arbuws sp., and includes a box hedge, clipped. Two Cali-
fornian redwoods commence the avenue with a blue atlantic cedar, pin oaks and large grove of elms
towards the house itself. The'former site of 2 tennis court is still visible adjacent to the house.

SIGNIFICANCE:

Bien Venuto is significant within the study area as a sanatorium, built at the time when Woodend
was promoting itself as a tourist destination and health resort and following on from the already
demonstrated interest in Mount Macedon for the same reasons. Iis links with the successful Berry
family and their charitable interests is also of note. : , oo

The house itself has some notable verandah detailing and appears to be custom designed because of
its unusual form. The billiard room addition to the interior is individually notable as a well pre-

served and fully articulated example of the Bungalow style cum East Coast American Hunting

ibid. o N

1 .
2 019208
?‘ RB1923-4, 235

Jackson, pers.com. engraved billiard cue at house
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Lodge manner which was fashionable at the time for rural retreats. There are also some mature
plantings along the drive which are of local importance for the specimens representad.

e
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NAME: BRIDGE ECHUCA MELBOURNE RAILWAY Floorn s
NURSERY ROAD, MACEDON
TYPE; BRIDGE ]
|
|
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MACEDON RANGES CULTURAL HERITAGE AND LANDSCAPE STUDY

LOCAL GOVERNMENT AREA: GISBORNE
ESMAP REFERENCE: 904 AMG: 2.84,58.56
SURVEY DATE: 19934 :
LANDSCAPE UNIT: P

HERITAGE RECOGNITION:

HISTORIC BUILDINGS REGISTER (R =Registerad):

AUSTRALIAN HERITAGE COMMISSION (N=Nominaied, R=Registerad): N
NATIONAL TRUST OF AUSTRALILA (C=Classifled, R=Recorded):

NTA FILE NUMBER:

HISTORIC GARDENS INVENTORY:

CREATION DATE:
1907c

STUDY HERITAGE VALUE: §

EMuiziple elements in a site may have differing heritage values, listed in element order)
mportant to Victoria e

v

HISTORICAL THEMES REPRESENTED: 3
TRANSPORT AND TRAVEL (Evidence of track, road and rail routes)

HISTORY:

‘In June 1852 the Melbourne, Mt Alexander and Murray River Railway Co. was promulgated to
build a main line of railway from Melbourne to Mt.Alexander and the River Murray, at Echuca and
a branch line to Williamstown. Its inability 10 raise adequate funds however led 1o its purchase by
the government in 1856 and to the formation of the Victorian Railways during the same year.

The Williamstown and the first section of the Echucs railway (1o Sunbury) were opened simulta-
neously on January 13 1859. They were the first lines 10 be opened by the Victorian railways depart-
ment. -

The balance of the Echuca railway was opened as follows:

Sunbury t¢ Weodend 8.7.61

Woodend to Kyneton 25.4.62

Kyneton to Bendigo 21.10.62 -

Bendigo to Echuca 19.9.64'

The historic importance of the Echuca railway hinges on the number of extant siructures dating
from the opening of the line. They include the Elmore/Eiphinsione design for station buildings
which is peculiar to this line and the number and diversity of examples of the Carlsruhe group of
buildings. The line also includes the largest and most spectacular coilection of early stone and iron
viaducis, The use of available local building materials adds interest 10 these structures. The con-
struction of the line during the 1860s is of further interest, in that it reflects such strategic economic
issues of the day as that of providing a rail outlet for the lucrative river trade of the north-western
plains and the New South Wales Riverina. The construction of the railway line and associated
works, as the largest building enterprise in the Colony at the time, was the focus of the battle for im-
proved working conditions and the venue in 1859-18560 for a strike against the principle of sub-con-
tracting, for the direct importation of indentured German masons 10 undercut locally established
conditions and rates of pay, for 2 pariial alliance between German and local masons, and for the
final collapse of the established level of wages. C

* DESCRIPTION:

This is an extensive red brick and stone raiiway bridge over Mursery Road which by its grade separa-
tion and materials appears to be from the ¢1907 improvements to the tine.. S
GOther imporgant butldings and features along the Echuca Melbourne railway line include:

‘Jacksons Cresk Viaduct'

‘The Sunbury Bank,’ commencement point Jacksons Creek
‘Clarkefield Goods Shed’

‘Bridge over creek on uPside of Riddells Creek’

‘Riddells Creek Station

‘Riddells Creek Bridge’

r
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*Gisborne Station’

‘Macedon Station’

*Macedon Bank and Water Tower’

‘Calder Highway Bridge’

“Woodend Station’

‘Bridge over Creek,” a short distance north of Woodend
‘Carlstuhe Station’

‘Kyneton Station’

‘Bndae over Creek,’ near Kyneton

‘Coliban River anduct

‘Malmsbury Station’

‘Daylesford Road Bridge’

‘Back Creek Viaduct’

‘Taradale Station’

‘Elphinstone Station’

‘Elphinstone Tunnel’

‘Castlemaine Station’

‘Various Brick and Girder Bridges with Local Granite Trim’
‘Harcourt Station’

‘Bridge over Barker's Creek’

‘Varlous Local Stone Embankment Abutments and Dwar{ Walls
‘Big Hill Tunne!’

‘Kan garco Flat Station’

‘Golden Square Station’

‘Bendigo Station’

‘Elmore Station’

‘Rochester Station’

}Echuca Station:’

-

CONTEXT:

On the former Church of England site opposite the reservoir are a number of mature pine speci-
mens, (possibly Digger pme) Similar Californian redwood and pine specimens are also planted
down 10 the edge of the reservoir.

Nearby is a reservoir which appears to have been constructed t0 provide water 1o the elevated tank
further up the line. The bridge and retaining walls in connection with the Riddells Creek crossing at
that point of the Bendigo Melbourne line are presumably connected with the nearby reservoir as a

possible outlet point.

Near to the reservoir itself is a red brick, possible purmp house or valve house and close 1o that again
is a stone base with holding down bolts possibly the site of other plant. The pump was probabiv
used 10 ﬁI} the tank serving Ihe steam trains from the reservoir. , -

SIGNIFICANCE: * .- * . o

The historic 1mportance of the Melbourne Echuca railway and its components hinges on the num-
ber of extant structures dating from the opening of the line. They include the Elmore/Elphinstone
design for station buildings which is peculiar to this line and the number and diversity of examples of

the Carlsruhe group of station buildings. This structure dates from the improvement of the hne car-

ried out early this century and hence is of secondary importance to this initial phase.

The line also includes the largest and most spectacular collection of early stone and iron viaducts,
The use of available local building materials adds interest to these structures. The construction of

the line during the 1860s is of further interest, in that it reflects such strategic economic issues of the
day as that of pro\ndmu a rail outlet for the lucrative river trade of the north-western plains and the . -

New South Wales Riverina. The construction of the railway line and associated works, as the largest

building enterprise in the Colony at the time, was the focus of the battle for unproved working con--

ditions and the venue in 1859-1860 for a strike against the principle of sub-contracting, for the direct

importation of indentured German masons o undercut locally established conditions and rates of
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pay, for 2 partial alliance berwesn German and local masons, and for the final coliapse of the estab-
lished level of wages. . :
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NAME: MACEDON STATE NURSERY
| NURSERY ROAD, MACEDON

9~

IYPE: GARDEN SITE NURSERY SITETREES




MACEDON RANGES CULTURAL HERITAGE AND LANDSCAPE STUDY

LOCAL GOVERNMENT AREA: GISBORNE
ESMAP REFERENCE: 904 AMG: 23438.56
SURVEY DATE: 19934 -
LANDSCAPE UNIT: P

HERITAGE RECOGNITION:

HISTORIC BUILDINGS REGISTER {R=Registersd):

AUSTRALIAN HERITAGE COMMISSION (N=Nominated, R =Registered):
NATIONAL TRUST OF AUSTRALIA {C=Classified, R=Recorded):
NTAFILE NUMBER:

HISTORIC GARDENS INVENTORY:

CREATION DATE:
1872-
STUDY HERITAGE VALUE: 5*

EMuiziplc elements in a site may have differing heriiage values, listed in element order)
mportant to Victoria . e
*Pari Altered *'

FIRST OR MAJOR OWNER/OCCUPIER:

VICTORIAN COLONIAL GOVERNMENT

HISTORICAL THEMES REPRESENTED: 5,6,7

FORESTS AND FOREST INDUSTRY (Evidencs of forest industry and management) :

GARDENS & LANDSCAPE (Experiments in horticulture, garden creation, gardenesque landscapes, display gardens)
TOURISM & RETREATS (Formation of early retreats for the elite, the later guest houses, pleasure gardens, and recreation
areas; also the summer houses)

HISTORY: -

The Macedon Forest Nursery was established in 1872 to provide trees for replaniing areas heavily
cut over fozr firewood, farm use and building timber, It was thought the first nursery of its kind in

the colony”.

A board of enquiry into “..the best means for securing the permanency of the State forests of Victo-
ria including their planting and general improvement and to plan regulations for the management..’
was set up in 1867 after a similar report prepared under surveyor general, CW Ligar on the Advis-
ability of Establishing State Forests in 1863, Apart from waste of native timbers, the enquiry noted
the [arge expenditure on timber imports”. It recommended forest reservations at sites such as
Bullengarook and Macedon where planting of exotic trees should be undertaken (English and Tur-
key oaks, elm, ash, walnut, hickory..plus ‘.the best lumber cedars and all the best pines of Europe

and America..”.

The first government forgster position was that of ‘caretaker of State forests’, James Kennedy in
1868, and others followed”. William Ferguson was appointed as Overseer of Forests in 1869 and he
reported in 1870 of the need for a 'small nursery’ at Macedon to provide trees for replanting tim-
bered areas which had been depleted of trees . The 21 acre site was surveyed by John Lardner in
1872, and establishment of the nursery was commenced in that year, under Ferguson’s guidance”,

The land was ‘heavily timbered with stringy bark, gum, and messmate saplings, and a number of
heavy stumps.."”".

Moulds, p.19
Milbourane p.S4f
Moulds.p, 16€

ibid 3

Moulds, p.19 R
Milboume, Moulds loc.cit.
Moulds,p.19 cites Ferguson
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The site was reserved in 1873 and clearing of the residual gum forest commenced. A stone cottage

and office, plus two timber cotiages, were built there for Ferguson and the staff and a siable and

forge were built two years later”. The 41 acre reserve was fenced with a four-rail split hardwood

fence which was o be followed by a quick growing hedge which would hide the fence once it decayed

and afford ‘.shelter and ornament 10 the ground’™, The same theory would be used in the planting

of regularly spaced hedge divisions in the nursery to shelter young trees. Already (1873) two acres

had been planted with thousands of ‘the choicest and best kinds of Himalayan and Californian tim.

ber trees”. Elms and planes, West Australian jarrah and Victorian red gum were 1g be planfed (for’
reforestation purposes) while white thorn and other hedge plants were already in the ground™.

The reserve was enlarged to 91 acres in 1877 and, in 1883, a museum was opened 1o exhibit the
leaves, fruit and flowers of exotic and native plants”. The lily pond may have been built in this pe-
riod. The museum was later used to house former reform school inmates who worked in the nursery
in the 1930s. In 1933 the museum was converted to a house. '

In 1891 a comprehensive drainage system was installed (surface brick, underground pipes) and in
1893 water was reticulated from the reservoir (Macedon Water Trust). By 1901 the reserve covered
81 acres and the arboretum was described as “..containing many fine specimens of the conifers and
deciduous trees of Europe, America and Asia. Sequaia, Menzies fir (Douglas fir), pitch pine, and
bull pine of America, the Corsican and biack ﬁines of Europe and the deodar and biue pine of the
Himalayas were considered the best, while there was an excellent collection of oaks and plane
trees..”. By 1901, three other State nurseries existed, Creswick, Havelock and Tintarra

The nursery distributed many plants free, with 350,000 being issued in 1889-95 (Monterey pine, pep-
per trees, and E.cladocalyx) in some instances to private owners. However the nursery trade took
this as unfair competition and it was stopped c1908.

Long-term manager, Joseph Firth regarded the nurserymens’ view as unfounded, saying that the
trees distributed from the State nursery were only of common varielies %nd only served as an inspi-
ration for owners to seek more exotic species from the private nurseries™. Free plants were still dis-
tributed to public bodies such as local municipalities and schools, finding their way into street
plantings, parks and arbor days”. Firth noted that the most popular trees in ¢1911 were the sugar
gums which had gained popularirty largely as a result of the work by George Perrin, the first Conser-

vator of Forests'?,

The Eorssts Commission took over the administration of the nursery after its commencement in
1919°". Ferguson was the first manager and the Scottish forester, McLelland followed him (1872-
81). By 1889 other foresters were being trained there. Joseph Firth was the next manager %1881-
1921), Stancliffe (1921- 1933}, Charles Venvilie (1939-49) and Jack Incoll (1949-73).

The buildings and nursery were destroyed in the 1933 fire, only some remnant trees remaining.

DESCRIPTION:

This is the State nursery siie set on the edge of the railway reservoir with remnant Californian red-
woods and deodar cedars as the major mature planting surviving from the 1983 fires.  There are
Monterey pine forests in the mid {oreground on the mountain towards the rear. '

The buildings are mainly new but there is a cast cement Italianate founiain set next 10 a
Trachycarpus fortuneii specimen which are the only sign of the once extensive ornamental garden

here. et

CONDITION:

The or'iginal buildings and fencing have been destroyed and all  that remains of the 15th century
development is the jountain remnant and some plantings nearby. Some mature conifers also have
survived,

Milbourne loc.cit;; Moulds,p.20 cites Ferguson 1573

. @_réaulds.p.i.’i) cites Ferguson Reporr of Stdte Nursery Macsadon, 1872

1Ct

ibid

ibid. . X

;é!%u!ds,p.w cites report Roval Commission into Forestry 1901

ibid.

Woodend Star 27.5.1911 -

ibid.
ibid.
ibid.
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CONTEXT:

The site borders the Bendigo railway and the assoctated sites such as the reservoir, water tower and
road bridge, .

SIGNIFICANCE:

The Macedon State Nursery is significant for its link with the research and experimenial forest in-
dustries, and aiso the planting of the exiensive public and private forest areas of the Macedon
Ranges and beyond. The Nursery is also of significance for its impact on the private gardens of the
Macedon Ranges and has strong links with other gardens throughout the Siate, such as the Royal
Botanic Gardens, Melbourne. The current poor condition of plantings reflects the disastrous effect
of the 1983 fires on the site.
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NAME: GRANTVILLE, NOW DEEP FIELDS
OCHILTREES ROAD,

o~

| TYPE: TREE AVENUE, FARM COMPLEX

e
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LOCAL GOVERNMENT AREA: ROMSEY

ESMaAP REFE ;RENCE: 397 AMG:2 9c ,38.66
SURVEY DATE: 19934

ROCHFORD PARISH

CROWN ALLOTMENTS: 14

LANDSCAPE UNIT: R04

HERITAGE RECOGNITION:

HISTORIC BUILDINGS RE GISTER {R=Registered):

AUSTRALIAN HERITAGE COMMISSION g\l Nommated R=Registerad):
NATIONAL TRUST OF AUSTRALLA (C=Classified, R= R"corded)
NTAFILE NUMBER:

HISTORIC GARDENS INVENTORY:

CREATION DATE:
18735c-

STUDY HERITAGE VALUE: R,L* -

&\{uuzple elements in a site may have differing heritage values, listed in element order)

mportant to the Shires of Romisey, Gisborne, Newham & Woodend (Tree avenue)
Important to Romsey & Lancefield District {Farm complex)

*Part Altered

FIRST OR MAJOR OWNER/OCCUPIER:

GRANT, WILLIAM & HELEN |

OTHER ASSOCIATIONS:
LUKE, KG

HISTORICAL THEMES REPRESENTED: 2
AGRICULTURAL AND PASTORAL (Evidence of pastorai and selection eras, changes in agriculturaj practices)

DESCRIPTION:

This stuccoed hipped roof and verandahed house has been altered many times, with the Luke's
work being the most evident. The old hipped roof form and a brick chimney are still visible, showing
the age of the first stage (¢187577). The property is now around 1500 acres.

CONDITION:

The original house form has been considerably aliered, with the replacement of the verandah, new
steel-framed windows and doors and additions. NO cne period dominates but most of the work was
done for KG Luke between ¢1942 (new metal framed openings) and 1956 (sunroom added).

CONTEXT:

The property is among others settled by mainly Scottish immigrants during the 1850s-60s and some

early structures, such as stone barns and early houses plus Iandscape remnanis, such as hawthorn

hedges along Ochiltrees Road recall that period. However, Deep Fields no longer presents evidence
of this era except perhaps for the size of the holding.

LANDSCAPE:

The house yard is entered through a notable stone gateway of the 1940s via a long driveway, lined
with mature Monterey cypress on either side. This drive is thought 1o have been created for KG
Luke after c1942.

The house garden has a gravel pathway/drive with cytindrical clipped cypress ormups Garrya elliptica,
photinia, Iarge Cupressus glabra and a cedar in the cenire of a garden bed. A chain wire and angle

i
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rail fence border the garden and 2 large farm shed complex is entered from the house yard, via an
archway in the cypress hedge. Much of this planting reputedly precedes c1942.

SIGNIFICANCE:

Deep Fields possesses significant elements from differing eras, the notable driveway and cypress ave-

nue being the creation of the noted businessman, KG Luke, and the house garden planting coming
from a prior ownership, possibly the 1520s. The remaining parts of the complex (as inspected) ap-
pear to express no one era or ownership and hence represent a contribution {rom many periods and

occupiers.

L
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NAME: THE ROWANS
428 ? OLD CALDER HIGHWAY, GISBORNE .

TYPE: HOUSE, GARDEN
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LOCAL GOVERNMENT ARFA: GISBORNE

ESMAP REFERENCE: 905 AMG: 2 8:,:330
SURVEY DATE: 19933
GISBORNE PARISH )
CROWN ALLOTMENTS: 45,34

LANDSCAPE UNIT: T03

HERITAGE RECOGNITION:

HISTORIC BUILDINGS REGISTER (R=Registered):

AUSTRALIAN HERITAGE COMMISSION (3 é\ =Nominated, R=Registered):
NATIONAL TRUST OF AUSTRALIA (C=Classified, R= Recorded)

NTAFILE NUMBER:
HISTORIC GARDENS INVENTORY:

CREATION DATE:
1892

STUDY HERITAGE YALUE: R,L J .
— )

&Muiup{e slements in a site may have differing heritage values, listzd in element order)” ’
mportant to the Shires of Romsey, Gisborne, Newham & Woodend (House)
Imporiant to Gisborne & Macedon District (Garden)

FIRST OR MAJOR OWNER/OCCUPIER:

CHERRY, EDWARD

OTHER ASSOCIATIONS:
ARMSTRONG, ALFRED EW

DESIGNER:
CHERRY, EDWARD?

BUILDER/CONTRACTOR:
CHERRY, EDWARD?

HISTORICAL THEMES REPRESENTED: 4

TOWNS {Evidence of urban development in 2 once dominantly rural context, civic and religious buildings, street plantings)

HISTORY:

The Rowans was owned over a long period by, the Edward Cherry family, local carpenters and manu-
facturers of the famous Cherry butter Ch%.l!"‘l Edward Cherry was the first owner in 1892 of what
was then described as a "Villa, stable etc.’ on 4 acres at New Gisborne por New Glsborne - Hil%
Cherry also leased 4 acres from EM Brady in the 1890s, adjoining this iot”.

Ada M Cherry was the next owner, presumably after Edwards death, and she leased it to people like
Grace Thomas, a nurse (privaig hospital?), until the 1920s". A crazmr Alfred Armstrong was the
next to own and occupy the house which was still on its 4 acres’. Alison Rose owned it in the

1940s°.

Arthur Oakley's name is also said to be {nitialed onto the cellar doo; and the walls are brickwork,
faced with kauri panelled lining and weatherboards (brick nogged)’. Wardrobes are built-in in three

J&A Benson, pers.com. )
‘ég‘iggg 22 1Sl entry for Cherty. no other martching des.; note Button, V1,p.40 says ¢1853
RBIQlS?-lS? 3‘.: :

RB1929-30.175

RB1944.5,274

J&A Benson, pers.com.; GE&MMEHS; Button, V1,p.40

AL LI
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bedrooms and there is also a large coach house. The house complex was apparently intended as a
show case for Cherry’s trade.

EDWARD CHERRY (c1831-1909)

After arriving in the colony in 1836, Edward Cherry (who was trained as a carpenier) opened a tim-
ber yard, shop and factory in Aitken Street Gisborne during 1838. There he produced the first
‘Cherry’ butter churn for WK Thomson, made from New Zez-l\.land kauri which was a timber used
for many years afterwards for the manufacture of these churns ™, .

The commission led to McEwan & Co marketing the churn on a mass basis®,

In 1858 Edward married Ann Appleby (nee Davis), their children including George Edward, Joh_;}
Henry, Thomas (later a noted agrnicultural scientist and bacteriologist) , Elizabeth and Mary Ellen”,
His sons, George & Thomas, were admitted as partners in the business in 1883. George purchased
his brother’s share two years later; Thomas having left for a medical course at Melbourne Univer-
sity". George Cherry's house was a two storey brick house on the site of the present

swimming pool

Edward’s niece, a Mrs Ould, also emigrated and ran a boarding house in Gisborne, eventually mar-
rying one of her boarders, George Lyell. When Cherry died in 1509 he was succeeded in the business
by his son George who died only 8 years later. Edward’s nephew (by marriage) George Lyell, who
was the former book keeper at the company, was then made the manager of the plant. He later be-
came 4 director and retired in 1951",

Edward also 100K an interest in civic matiers by planting cork elms in front of his factory in the
1860s’. Others followed in Aitken and Hamilton Streets. He was a shire councillor in the mid 1880s
and took a long interest in the Church of England and mechanics institute. His sQns, Thomas and
George followed his lead, also working towards the expansion of the mechanics hall™. '

After a fire in 1912 (or 19097), the {factory was rebutit behind the old site (now Gisborne Village
Shopping centre site) but facing Brantome Street and continued to operate into the 1950s supplying
both domgstic and industrial churns and related dairy produce equipment to Australia and other
countries”. Another part of the business was the, fruit cases milled and fabricated at the factory from

local timber and seat by train across the State'’. The Selco brapd of litho printer was also made -

there from the 1930s and distributed across the Commonwealth . Around this peﬁiod they had a
sales branch in Sussex Street, Sydney and agencies in New Zealand and South Africa

Lyell who was a world renowned entomologist introduced show case manufacture to the plant and
these were made for butterfly and insect collectors across the State. His own collection was donated
to the Museum of Victoria. The Cherrv company introduced a tractor-operated post hole digger
after the bush fires in 1944-3. During the war, they manufactured armoury joinery such as mortar
boxelsjand also produced school and other government furniture during the immediate post-war pe-
ried .

Cherry reputedtly built the Queens Bridge Alston & Sons windmill factory in South Melbourne and
when this nationally known company began to wind down their operations, the works were moved (o
the Cherry factory in Gisborne ™, T

The Macedon Ranges Tourist Bookler' commented in a history of the «;f’zmy churn that the growth of

. the industry had been a ‘material factor in the prosperity of the district’>>. The factory was described as

covering some 20,000 square, feet and being well-lit. It had an engineer’s shop where apart form the but-

ter making equipment,-‘road cabins’ had been built for the Country Roads Board and truck bodies.

1 MM&EGHS articte by Miss J Benscn from the Gisborne Gezere 1938 printed in the Bush fnn News 71,0.30; Button,
\_f'l_.tro.:&ﬁ-? cites Gisborne Gazene 14,10,1859 : ]

2 ibid.

3 ibid.

4 ibid.; sz ADB V7,p.633

g Daly in Bush Inn News 10.70,27

7

8

9

ibid.

%gétcu, V1,p.39

ibid,

MM&GHS see brochures for the Invicta butter cutters, butter printers and weighers, curd mills, butter rollers

10 ibid.
11 MM&GHS see brochure for Gisborne Vacuum Printing Frame
12 MM&GHS brochure nd.; Macedon Ranges Tourist Bookler
13 ibid.; see Uneeda Sketch Book ledger also working drawings
%*‘i MM&ggg Ron pers.com.
3 2
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DESCRIPTION:

This is a prominently sited and large timber (part masonry- brick nogged) lialianate style houss
with a slated roof and return concave-profile verandah, with paneled cast-iron friezes and iron
brackets. There are also aves brackets and coloured brick detailing to the chimneys. Reputedly the
interior is panelled and lined with Xauri pine, as are the weatherboards, and there is large coach
house on the property.

The side boundary picket is early but the front picket fence is new but of the period and has a rubble
stone gateway.

CONDITION:

Additions include a visually related Duich-hipped wing on the west and small reproduction garden
elements.

S

CONTEXT:

The house is prominently sited on a bend in the old Calder Highway which leads north through part
of the old racecourse reserve, with associated mature tree rows, and eventually past Rosslyne. Close
by but not readily visible is 2 new housing estate which may have been created from Cherry land.

LANDSCAPE:

The garden is largely new but contributory plants include cordylines, a Norfoik Is. pine, Canary Is-
land date palm planted in the side lawn, agapanthus, cordyline, deodar cedar, Monterey cypress
along a side boundary, oaks along the drive, and Bhutan cypress while nearby street planting also
contributes. The garden is of local importance.Inspection reguired.

SIGNIFICANCE:

The Rowans is significant as the most substantial surviving evidence of the famous Cherry family
whose butter churns were household names across the country. The house is known in Gisborne as
the only surviving Cherry house in a town in which the Cherrys provided a major industry for many
years and its owner, Edward Cherry, wes a prominent figure in civic matters.

The Cherrys were also résponsible for many of the town’s buildings and this house provides an in-
sight into the workmanship praciised on their own buildings, being a showcase for their trade.

The house and garden are prominently sited at the gateway to Gisborne’s urban area and provide a
period transition from the early landscapes of Rossiyne and Cathlaw 1o the more contemporary
Gisborne towtniscape. The Rowans is known and valued by the local community as the house where
Edward Cherry and his family lived.
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LOCAL GOVERNMENT AREA: ROMSEY
ESMAP REFERENCE: 597 AMG: 2.52,58.63
SURVEY DATE: 1993-4 )
ROCHFORD PARISH

CROWN ALLOTMENTS: 2A,2B/A

LANDSCAPE UNIT: R11

PRECINCT:
Kerrie Farms & Civic

HERITAGE RECOGNITION:

HISTORIC BUILDINGS REGISTER (R=Registerad):

AUSTRALIAN HERITAGE COMMISSION (N=Nominated, R=Registered):
NATIONAL TRUST OF AUSTRALIA (C=Classifizd, R=Recorded):

NTA FILE NUMBER:
HISTORIC GARDENS INVENTORY:

CREATION DATE: . -
1886¢ - .
STUDY HERITAGE VALUE: L

&Muitipte elements in a site may have differing heritage values, listed in element order)
mportant to Romsey & Lancefield District

FIRST OR MATOR OWNER/OCCUPIER:
ELSE, JAMES

HISTORICAL THEMES REPRESENTED: 2
AGRICULTURAL AND PASTORAL (Evidencs of pastoral and selection eras, changes in agricultural practices)

HISTORY:

The current owners, the Else family, have been occupants of the house since its construction in the
1880s,, being James Else, grandfather of the present family representative who was born in the
house"._An older house (now gone) was closer 10 the stream. The name ‘J Else’ is on property plans
of 18937,

In c1886 James and Catherine (or Katherine, nee Craig, married 1873} Else settled on 80 acres in
the Kerrie Valley, later buying an adjoining 80 acres. Their 10 children were prominent in local
farming circles including grandson, Jim Else who was a champion ploughman and dairy farmer”.
The wife of one of the children, Annie Els2, recalled that the homestead h%d a stone kitchen fire-
place with a crane and that electricity was nqQt available in the area until 19617, She and her husband,
Arthur, lived there after James & Catherine”.

DESCRIPTION:

This is a four bedroom, hipped roof weatherboard Victorian cottage {c1886), on 80 acres, set well
back from the road and surrounded by ornamental exotics. It is a typical but altered double-fronted
house, with timber-post iron-ormamented (late partern) verandah and symmetrically placed chim-
neys. The verandah roof iron is branded Redcliff and may have been concave  once (now skillion
with new rafters) also the floor is of red pressed bricks.

Arother gabled, smaller timber cottage and sheds exdsts further along the valley, presumably an
early part of Spring Grove. (both formerly owned by Mrs. A Else).

3
2

see title

M1893

Reid, p.232; see G Smith R&LDHS 7.93 says land bought 1836
%@éncd, My Side of the Mountam,p. 71

101d.

b gipd—
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A old brass hydraulic ram (made in OIhio) in the creek (1ributary to the Monument creek) has bee
there for a long period and 3till works®,

The property’s name arises from the numerous springs which come out of the hillside.

Y

CONDITION:

The verandah roof may have been concave once {now skillion with new rafters) also the verandah
floor is of red pressed bricks. ,

CONTEXT:

The similar but later property, Kerrie Park, is opposite on O’Sullivans Lane and the valley siting of
Spring Grove is a picturesque one with mature exotic plantings lining the Hesket Kerrie Road on
the ridge behind.

LANDSCAPE:

A golden privet hedge encircles the house yard and Italian cypress and Lombardy poplar specimens
are nearby with willows in creek. The rear garden is mature but from the 1920-30s with rhododen-
drons, oleander, birch, hydrangeas, large camellias in the front and rear, and a white magnolia. Rem-
nants of a walnut grove are rlear the house yard corner.

Old trees include the poplars and cypress and an old orchard, with mature chestnuts, at the front of
the house.

_ SIGNIFICANCE:

Spring Grove is significant because it typifies the simple architecture of modest farm holdings in the
late 15th century and has a strong link with one family (Else) since its construction, allowing greater
historical interpretation of the site. The Else family were influential in local matters and are still
well represented in the district.

Spring Grove is at the focus of a picturesque valley which is framed by mature exotic and native
plantings while retaining some of the long-term plantings around the house and in the orchard.

1 Else family pers.com.
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NAME: BARTON, NOW SEYMOUR COTTAGE Ho | G4
020 PALMER STREET, ROMSEY )

TYPE: HOUSE, GARDEN
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LOCAL GOVERNMENT AREA: ROMSEY

ESMAP REFERENCE: 911 AMG: 3.060,38.53
SURVEY DATE: 19934 -
LANCEFIELD PARISH

CROWN ALLOTMENTS: 16,16B/A

LANDSCAPE UNIT: T01

HERITAGE RECOGNITION:

HISTORIC BUILDINGS REGISTER (R==Registered):

AUSTRALIAN HERITAGE COMMISSION 3’=Nomina:ed, R=Registered):

NATIONAL TRUST OF AUSTRALIA (C=Classified, R=Recerded):

NTA FILE NUMBER: .

HISTORIC GARDENS INVENTORY:

CREATION DATE:

1858 pre

STUDY HERITAGE VALUE: 5,L. .

&Multiple elements in a site may have differing heritage values, listed in element order) Sl
mportant to Victoria (House)

Important to Romsey & Lancefield District (Garden)

FIRST OR MAJOR OWNER/OCCUPIER:

SEYMOUR, SIDNEY

OTHER ASSOCIATIONS:
SEYMOUR, GEORGE

HISTORICAL THEMES REPRESENTED: 4

TOWRNS (Evidence of urban development in a once dominantly rural context, civic and religious buildings, sireet plantings)

HISTORY:

This hcnfse is thought to have been erected for Sidney Seymour and to be the oldest house in
Romsey .

Se:ymofxr, a labourer originally from Radstock, Somersetshire was aged 27 when he was ‘imported’ to
this colony as an assisted immigrant by J Marshall in 1840. With him on the sgi Himalaya was his
wife, Elizabeth (nee Moon) who was aged 23 and a serving maid by occupation”®, I%"he bounty paid by
each of the ‘importers’ was 18 per person or 36 per family. :

He and his wife travelled into rural Victoria with their employer, going to a station near
Shepparton. Later they tried the goldfields, finally settling in Romsey in 18587 Ten years later he

-acquired land at Cobaw which was eventually inherited by his son, John in 1899°.

" When he died aged:!'(}o in 1913 he was descrived as the oldest resident in the distric, having been
- there for 71 years”. Another report on his _ 100th birthday termed him ‘A Marvellous Man’, as
thought by all in the district while his wife, Elizabeth, was noted for her many good works in the

area at her death in 1901° At that time he had 2 sons, six daughters and 47 grandchildren’.

. Shortly before his death he was photographed in front of an apple tree in his orchard in Palmer
' _SmeerS the caption noting that it was a ‘Kentish Fillbasket’ and planted by Seymour 57 years ago (ie.
1856)". S A

RL&DHS gamphlet . . . .
L&RHS cotiection exiract from assisted immigration registers .
V&M V2,436 date given is 1385 in erroc?; obif {or son George Romsey Excrminer  19.11.37 gives 1858
ibid. sseiz Cobun; sce Romsey Exarniner 7.2.99
. R&LDHS Romusey Exarminer 7 1913 obit. | .
Romsey Examingr nd. 1913; Romsey Examiner 2.8.91 obit
L&RHS Lancefield Mercury 1907
R&LDHS copy appre 7.6.1913 5.0,
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%

Later residents/owners were George Seymour (son), John & Mary Ellen O’Connor imd Isa Ellen
who donated the house 10 the Romsey & Lancefield District Historical Society in 1982

DESCRIPTION:

This is a hipped roof and verandahed house clad with stained and sealed (recently redone) meranti
doors, probably Singapore-made, with what appears 10 be red pine cover strips to joints. The
‘doors’ are configured in pairs nominally 7x3 feet”. The house appears to be very old judging by its
simple low form and detailing, concurring the 1830s date claimed. Corner posts and studs, either
side of openings, are exposed and are of pitsawn hardwood jointed with tenoas, indicating that the
house frame was not prefabricated although the cladding was. Bearers and weatherboards (3), below
and above the panels, are also pit sawn (some replaced). Evidence in the roof space shows that the
house roof has been extended north at an early date, probably to encompass a detached kitchen °.
Corrugated iron on the roof has the Gospel Ozk brand which was probably made c1870-95 when
the manufacturing firm, Walkers, was liquidated”. Fine wire nails used to fix the shingles in the
north extension are vausual, having not béen identified in Victoria previously”.

The verandah rafters are pitsawn with spiit shingle roof cladding under corrugated iron. What ap-
ear to be the original verandah posts are narrow, stop-chamfered and set on red gum blocks.
€non sockets in the posts suggest either brackets (likely), a tie rod or a frieze rail.

The entry door is typical of the Late Victorian era, with deep panelling in part replaced with glazing,
and appears to be itself a replacement (originally ledge and braced?). The rear chimney base is of
coursed stone rubble (basalt) with slop-moulded bricks used for the upper section which has a sim-
ple corbeled top; a similar chimney is at the front of the house.

Scrolled gates at the entry and to the adjoining block suggest the 1920s redevelopment of the site.

CONDITION:

The verandah floor has been replaced with concrete. New ogee spouting has been added. The rear
verandah has been infilled with weatherboard but the panelling is still visible, continuing on the rear
‘wall. Reputedly some panels have been reused from the interior to restore some external panels and
all panag have been refinished using memories of its early colour. The front fence is from the 1920s.

CONTEXT:
The site is close to the Romsey School and associated Main Street trees and mature planting on the
reserve. ' _

LANDSCAPE:

There is an extensive exotic garden around the house which has been generally altered and substan-
tially reflects the 1920s.¢&*Connors?). On the north side of the house is a very large Monterey cy-
ress (?) stump, O the north again are lilacs, and a  loquat. At the north-east is a clump of
tburnum tinus next 1o an outbuilding, on the east is a large walnut, once part of this garden. Plant-
ing includes the purple flowered kangaroo apple, large laurels, remnant holly hedge also wormwood,
and an unusual oak specimen, elderberry, mature Momerey cypress, and coloneasters.

The apple tree described as a Kentish Fillbasket and reported to be planted in 1856 by Sidney Sey-
mour remains in the back garden of the property. Photographs show Seymour sitting under the tree.
A very large cypress, possibly Cupressus macrocarpa  was temoved from the western rear of the
house in a working bee on 28.11.1981; photographs show the stump to be enormous o this may also
have been planted by the Seymoug family. There were apparently a number of similar trees around
the house and also mary fuchsias °.

R&LDHS Oldest Romsey House pamphlet, Frank Campbell notes south-east Asian meranii as source.

1

% M Lewis, Sydney Seymour Cottage, report 1o the Romsey & Lancefield District Historical Society, 7.3.94, copy held
ibid. ’ . :

4 ibid.’

5 tbid

[ RL&DHS



MACEDON RANGES CULTURAL HERITAGE AND LANDSCAPE STUDY

SIGNIFICANCE:

Barton is significant for its unusual prefabricated external meranti cladding and, given that its likely
origin was Singapors, as a claddinhg type which i3 thought 0 be tare in Victoria. The building exhib-
its other matters of technical interest in the nail type used (not identified elsewhere in the State) in
the shingles and the brand of roofing iron. The whole construction, being of iocal hand sawn or split
timbers is of note within the region for irs high integrity to this early date and now rare constructicn

e. :
8?1 a local level its remarkable state of preservation and {ts documented age allows strong connec-
tions with one family (Seymour) whose activities are closely linked with the history of the Romsey
and Lancefield district and the subject of detailed documenrtation in local collections. [t is among
the oldest group of cottages in the study area and the State. .
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NAME: SEFTON
PINSCHOFF LANE, MOUNT MACEDON

TYPE: HOUSE,GARDEN
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LOCAL GOVERNMENT AREA: GISBORNE
ESMAP REFERENCE: 590 AMG: 2.37 S58.60

SURVEY DATE: 19934
CROWN -\LLOT\I:.N'TS pPLAS A

LANDSCAPE UNIT: T04

HERITAGE RECOGNITION:

HISTORIC BUILDINGS REGISTER (R=Registered):

AUSTRALIAN HERITAGE COMMISSION (N= Nominated, R=Registered):
NATIONAL TRUST OF AUSTRALLA (C=Classified, R=Recorded):
NTATILE NUMBER:

HISTORIC GARDENS INVENTORY: ¥

CREATION DATE:
1907-8

STUDY HERITAGE YALUE: S

(Muitiple elements in a site may have differing heritage values, listed in clement order) ! "
Important to Victoria ,

FIRST OR MAJOR OWNER/OCCUPIER:
BAILLIEU, WILLIAM LAWRENCE

OTHER ASSOCIATIONS:
BAILLIEU, CLIVE

DESIGNER:
SMITH & OGG

BUILDER/CONTRACTOR:
HARROP, GEORGE

HISTORICAL THEMES REPRESENTED: 6,7

TOURISM & RETREATS (Formation of early retreats for the 2iit2, the later suest houses, pleasure gardens, and recreation

areas; aiso the summer houses)
GARDENS & LANDSCAPE (Experiments in horticuiture, gardea creation, gardenesque landscapes, display gardens)

HISTORY:

Sawmill operator, Fitzsimmons leased this site and later George Dav:sL reputediy bought the fres-
hold in the 1860s (reputedly 51 acres), selling o H.W. Lanulanda in 1864°, For a long time, the prop-

© erty was used as the Macedon House guest house under the tenure of former b[ack;muh James (and

later Janet) Morrison who had erected a large house there by the mid 1870s”. The Morrisans’
Macedon House was noted as “.large and co'npieze accommodation good mountain air, tennis and
walks..” and as late as 1904 a ou1de 1o accommodanqn on Mount Macedon described it as the ‘old-
est-established Summer Resort at Macedon U °. His death ¢1900 left Janet 'VIornson in charge
and it was eveniuallv sold 10 the estate agent, ¥ 1lha~1 Bailfiev™.

WL Baillieu purchased the boarding house and 36 acres, plus another 14 acres from the CBA Bank
Jean Milbourne states that he remodeled and extended the old guest house but reputedly the front
was little chanoed The design was reputadly by architects Sydney Smith & Ogg, to be built by

§acv brochure Milbourne, 63, 121
ibid. 1875; sez RB1906-7, 808; ‘?.BISSJ 157
Mllbcume p.63 cites Mount Macedon improvement Leagus booklet

Lrnda i) s

ibid
Mxlboumc, p-122 cites early photographs
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George Harrop and was substantially completed by 1908%. Tt is possible that both designers did work
there, with Macedon House being possibly rebuilt after Morrison’ death and then adapted by
Baillieu soon after purchase. ’
Reputedly the house has notable and extensive timber panelling and some 50 rooms, with numerous
bedrooms, most with their own bathrooms®, During the Baillieu tenure, Sefton possessed 2 nine-
hole goif course, croguet lawn and tennis court on the 22 acres of garden surrounding the house
while the balarce of the property is woodland”. Henry Grumont was the gardener there for over 30

A4

years . 4

William Lawrence Baillien (1859-1936)

William was born in Queenscliff, the son of James & Emma Baillieu, James being then a govern-
ment boatman’. James erected the successful Ozone Hotel at Queenscliff, in 1881, and in so doing
created the foundation for an immense family {ortune.

William commenced his career in the Queenscliff branch Bank of Victoria, aged 14, and began to es-
tablish powerful connections with persons such as Edward Latham , the Fink and Munrg families.
William married Bertha, Latham’s daughter; Latham later married William’s sister, Emma”.

In 1885 at the crest of Melbourne’s property boom he joined James Munro's son, Donald in an es-
tate agency with financial backing from James Munro’s Federal Bank'. Within two years they had
the greatest turnover of any Melbourne estate agency but, like many other land investors of the pe-
riod, went bankrupt and the parinership was dissolved by 1892.

Baillieu formed a new estate agency, with his brother Arthur, and broadened his interests, investing
successfully in the minor mining recovery of the 1890s and later became deeply involved with the re-
working of the Broken Hill silver lead mines (cf. other BHP investors on Mount Macedon in the
1390s). By 1900 he was thought to be very rich, only years after bankruptcy. In 1501 he wag elected
to parliament, becoming leader of the Council and a minister in the Murray government”, In the
same period he was placed on many boards and committees such as The Herald (Fink), Wunderlich
Ltd, Dunlop, Mount Morgan Gold Mining Co. and the Carlton Brewery Ltd. Through his involve-
ment in the Melbourne Electricity Co. he competed with the government in securing a stake in the
Morwell brown coal production of electricity but reluctantly conceded in 1918 that it was in the pub-
lic interest that such a commodity should be government owned. He aided in post-war reconstruc-
tion as a member of the Commonwealth Finance Council and suggested a model for the Australian
Wheat Board prior to its founding in 1916, despite allegations in parliament that Baillieu had Ger-
man associations during World War One. He donated the largest single sum to the Australian Sol-
diers Repatriation Fund in 1918 while he and jis brothers also set up the Bailliew Educational
Trust for the children of dead or wounded soldiers”,

In 1910, just after his acquisition of Sefton, Baillieu erected Collins House, in Collins Street, as a
multi-tenanted office building which became the home of his own companies as well a3 numerous
other branches of capitalism in the State for many years. ,

His toswn address was Heathfield, in Camberwell, and his family, four sons and four daughters {(1889-
1904)"". Among his few close friends, was the architect, Walter Butler and the artist, Arthur

Streeton. His wife Bertha died in 1925 and his daughter Vere took over the households at both

Sefton and Heathfieid.

When Baillieu’s oldest son, Clive (1885-1967), was created a baron in 1953, he took the title of Lord

Bailliep, First Baron of Sefton in the Commonwealth of Australia and of Parkwood in the County of

Surrey”". Clive Baillieu had married William Clarke’s daughter, Ruby, in 1915, so co_mplezing_one of

.-

the district’s great financial unions. :

DESCRIPTION:
As a continuation of the architectural theme already established by the governor’s summer house

(1386), this large Tudor revival style verandahed house is the elevated centrepiece, set on axis, of 2

ibid, 1907; architect ¢laimed by Milbourne (p122) for Baillizus as Walter Butler but plans sighted at Sefton by M
Hutton from SS&0O; Ramsay, 9.19 says 1903 RB1907-8.503 NAV 150 p; RB1905-9,501 NAYV 263 pounds
Legacy brochure, source Milbourne? . :

Legacy brochure, see Milboumne, p.122 '
Milbourne, p.148 . o
ADB V7,135¢
ibid,
ibid. :
ibid. -

ibid.

thid.
WWA 195963

ot Lt R T - NI S S T S

s
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large mature garden. The approach path follows the garden axis while on one side, sxtensive lawns
slope away 0 the north. .

The attic-storey house is clad with a rusticated or chamfered weatherboard and rough-cast stucco
above, with a roof of corrugated iron. The roofline is picturesque, with dormers which contrast in
size and form with the broad main roof shapes behind. A tea-house like form has been created for
many of the house’s pavilions, with deep sharply gabled main roofs set against shallow, hipped skill-
ion-profile verandah roofs. Verandah detailing 1s confined to fretted timber brackeis shaped in a
Moorish pattern.

The rough-cast stucco chimney shafts are expressed and prominent, topped with the typical Edward-
ian shallow caps and terra-cotta pots. One gable, facing north, has a centred chimney shafi, with
symmetrically %Kiced louvred vents either side, in-a manner more typical of Walter Butler than
Smith & Ogg. The gabies are ornamented with half-timbering, shingling (no longer stained) or tim-
ber trussing. Windows are typically set in groups, with some leaded glazing surviving, and the main
entry is gained via a five-sided open hipped roof porch attached to the front skilifon verandah. The
main door case is unusual, with a door (replaced/altered) and top light central to two double hung
windows, each with 2 toplight. The sill of each window is supported on a scrolled iron strap which
presumabdly would have been painted black originally.

There are extensive outbuildings, such as servants quarters, wood sheds (possibly from the earlier
house?) and new visually reiated structures such as Sefton Cottage nedrby, facing Sangsters Lane,

The timber picket gate and copper repousse name plate are notable.

CONDITION: _

~ Given that the house reached its general external form by €1910, alterations since then include new
openings on the east eievation plus a npew twin-roofed atrium which fills in the rear verandah and

yard. Natural {inishes such as the formerly stained shingling and the cementwork have been painted

over and much of the leaded glazing replaced with plain. - '

CONTEXT:

Sefton and its garden are major contributing paris of the importart Mount Macedon gardens pre-
cinct. It Is just north of the near contemporary Kuranda, west of Taylor & Sangster’s nursery and
east of the site of Pinschof's house (now Camelot).

LANDSCAPE:

The garden is extensive, with large lawn areas and bedding along with mature trees such as the cop-
per and green beeches, Japanese maples, oaks, cedars, Araucaria sp., a large redwood, tall hedges
such as Viburnum sp., holly, clipped box (also parterre at house front). Two tennis courts, possibly
original (chain wire), along with a fern waik with stone-walled path through fern gully area paraliel
with drive. :

SIGNIFICANCE:
Sefton is significani as, in part the oldest guest house on the mountain, and in part, an accomplished
and near original architectural creation for the nationally notable figure, William Baillieu. The de-

sign is a masteriul rendition of the picturesque medieval-based styles traditionally applied to rural
retreats in the 19th and early 20th centuries, and 2 style which found favour on Mount Macedon in

the governor's summer house as early as 1386.

Baillieu's occupation of a [arge house on Mount Macedon (Sefton) was to be expected for a man of
his wealth but, as a BHP director, he [ollowed a pattern of investment on the mountain set by earlier
persons suchias Dr Turner, W R Wilson and William Knox who were also directors of BHP".

1 see Braemar and Woodend Star Feb. 1893
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The mature elements, the relationship of the garden to the house and the extent of Sefton’s garden
ensure a major contribution to the important Mouat Macedon gardens precinct.

-
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NAME: MONYNUT, ONCE PART GREENHILLS ESTATE
PORTINGALES LANE, MONEGEETTA

TYPE: FARM COMPLEX




MACEDON RANGES CULTURAL HERITAGE AND LANDSCAPE STUDY

LOCAL GOVERNMENT AREA: ROMSEY

ESMAP REFERENCE: 398 AMG: 3.03,58.50
SURVEY DATE: 19934 -
MONEGEETTAPARISH

CROWN ALLOTMENTS: 4A

LANDSCAPE UNIT: RO2

HERITAGE RECOGNITION:

HISTORIC BUILDINGS REGISTER (R=Registered):
AUSTRALILAN HERITAGE COMMISSION (N=Nominated, R=Registered):
NATIONAL TRUST OF AUSTRALIA (C=Classified, R=Recorded):

NTA FILE NUMBER:
HISTORIC GARDENS INVENTORY:

CREATION DATE:
1908¢

STUDY HERITAGE VALUE: R -
. o

i

&Muhiplc elements in a site may have differing heritage values, fisted in element arder)””
mportant to the Shires of Romsey, Gisborne, Newham & Woodend

FIRST OR MAJOR OWNER/OCCUPIER:
WEATHERLY, VIOLETKR ?

HISTORICAL THEMES REPRESENTED: 2
AGRICULTURAL AND PASTORAL (Evidence of pas'toral and selection eras, changes in agricuitural practices)

HISTORY:

This site and others was first purchased by Christopher N Bagot in the late 1850s early 1860s!, He
sold the combined allotments (said to be 13,400 acres), reputedly as the Greenhills Estate, to Wil-
liam J Clarke in 1875 for a large sum of __ 60,707°, After Clarke’s death in 1897, his son Rupert (and
William'’s wife Janet) mortgaged Monynut for 22000 and repaid the debt in 1903 prior to selling to
Viojet K Riddell Weatherly six years iater”. Little further is known of the Weatherly or Bagot fami-
lies”. A Robert C Bagot was a surveyor instrumental in many private land subdivisions and was also
connected with the Victorian Racing Club bat Christopher is not listed in contemporary Victorian

directories”.

George Kettlewell ( a2 wool broker) was the next owner in 1528, paying 28,000 for a property which
he appears to have named Monynut. Kettlewell retired to Toorak and by 1959 Monynut covered
some 4838 acres and his son, George A Kettlewell (gragier) and his wife Valda, had occupied the
property for a number of years prior 10 his death in 1957".

The property is thought to have been also once owned by Alan Ketilewell. The pro%?rty is currently
owted by the Mitchell-Hill family whose daughter, Sue married into the sawmiliing Frost  family.

DESCRIPTION:

The house is set at the base of Brock Hill (also known as Monynut Hill) with a newer house nearby.
It also has an old garden and trees. The house is of red brick, with hipped main corrugated iron roof
and projecting gabled bay typical of the Edwardian era but [acks the detailing except for two bands
of corbeling on the chimney shafts. The verandah iron detailing (posts, frieze) may be new, being of
an unusual pattern. There have been numerous rear extensions. An elevated water tank and shed

X

RGO APP.72104 .

iggg.; see Reid (Ed.), #hen Manory Tums the Key,p.147

ibid.

BDM no entries to 1888; SLV; ADB; Gibney & Smith; see William Weatherly of Billilla?
§§%BDISTS, 1863

ibid.
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MACEDON RANGES CULTURAL HERITAGE AND LANDSé}fsPE STUDY

under may be contemporary with the house, The house has some trees and mature garden and com-
mands views in many directions.

The large outbuildings appear contemporary with the house and are notable, with corrugated iron
cladding, a king-post trussed-gable form and tall finials (see alse Cleveland).

CONDITION: i
The house front and sides are near complete but the rear (approach side) has been added to exten-

sively. The verandah may have been rebuilt or aliered.
The early gabled sheds appear externally near original.

CONTEXT:

The house and farm complex is set on a prominent site on the north side of Brock Hill which is a
major element in the R2 Landscape Unit and in theg landscape generally. Further north are other
early farm complexes, along Portingales Road (ie. Oakvale).

LANDSCAPE:

Planting includes a Canary Island date palm, and Cedrus deodara, Cupressus torulosa and blue atlas
cedars among the many conifers. The garden is weil laid out with a circular drive 1o the front of the
house, with mature holly bushes and extensive privet hedge, box, poplars, mature oak, Eucalypnis
ficifolia and Trachycarpus sp.. Further {form the house is a large Cupressus funebris.

SIGNIFICANCE:

The house and adjacent sheds at Monynut are significant as represenative of a medium scale farm

complex of the Edwardian period in the Romsey district. The house being of brick is more substan-
tial than many Edwardian farm houses ofthat era in the study area and presents a conirast in form
while the sheds compare favourably with those at Cleveland (Lancefield) and others on the former
KG Luke estate, being near complete and large. _

The property has been connected with locally prominent figures in the district, including the Weath-
grly and Kettlewell families. :

P

,-/ 1
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NAME: DAY'S HOUSE |
007 PYKE STREET, WOODEND

TYPE: HOUSE




MACEDON RANGES CULTURAL HERITAGE AND LANDSCAPE STUDY

LOCAL GOVERNMENT AREA: NEWHAM & WOODEND
ESMAP REFERENCE: 903 AMG: 2.81,35.63
SURVEY DATE: 1993

WOQODEND TOWN PARISH
CROWN ALLOTMENTS: 1372

LANDSCAPE UNIT: T03

HERITAGE RECOGNITION:

HISTORIC BUILDINGS REGISTER (R=Registered):

AUSTRALIAN HERITAGE COMMISSION é =Nominated, R=Registered):
NATIONAL TRUST OF AUSTRALIA (C=Classified, R=Recorded):
NTAFILE NUMBER:

HISTORIC GARDENS INVENTORY:

CREATION DATE:
1860C
STUDY HERITAGE VALUE: R

%Multip!c elements in a site may have differing heritage values, listed in element order) | — 7
mporiant to the Shires of Romsey, Gisborne, Newham & Woodend

FIRST OR MAJOR OWNER/OCCUPIER:
DAY, GEORGE -

OTHER ASSOCIATIONS:
GRIFFIN, JOHN

HISTORICAL THEMES REPRESENTED: 4,3

TRANSPORT AND TRAVEL (Evidence of track, foad and rail routes)
TQOWNS (Evidencs of urban development in a once dominantly rural context, civic and religious buildings, strest plantings)

HISTORY:

The site was granted 10 Edward Moeller in 1859 who quickly resold it to George Day (described as a
railway worker or plate layer) in 1860, the vear of George's marriage, for 15°. The next sale was a
considerable time later, in .19023, when Day (now retired) sold the house and land to Frank & Harri-
ett Hinsley (labourer) for 100°.

Five years later they sold it 1o the bootmaker, John Griffin for 75 who mortgaged it for 100 in 1908,
again for 250 in 1910 and for 325 in 1911°, Griffin also owned a High Street shop (CA4/2) but had
moved to Coburg by the end of the First War and lgased this house to a carpenter, Charles  Phil-

lips4. George Webber was the next long-term owner”,

The Day family was large, births to the family at this house spanning from 1861-1884. The Woodend
station opened on the Mt Alexander raijway in 1861, the year of the Day’s first born at Woodend
(Catherine). She was followed by Sarah, Clara, Dominick George 1867 (later known as George D
Day), William, Kate, Margaret, Thomas, Richard and Alfred®. George married Margaret Norris”.

One son, George D Day announced a new ﬁairdre'sging and tobacconist business in High Street dur-
ing 1890, near the Post Office (Dyke's old store}’.? . The hairdressing continued into the 1900s but
Day also commenced a fish and fruit market in High Street in the early 1890s which was left to Mrs

Day to dispense with in 1897°.

R%O APP393698; see RB1894,56; RB1871,99

thid, .

ibid.; RBE908-9,108
RB1918-19257

RB1920-1,703; RB1929-30,270
Bb]?iM Pioneers Index

1014,

Woodend Star 1.4.5073

Woodend Star 21.5.93/3, 4.12.9772

WL-Ah A R tAbd e
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T

DESCRIPTION:

This is a weatherboarded, high-hip roofed house with a simple timber verandah across the front and
symmetrically placed multi- paned casement windows, all attributes of an early construction date. To
one side is a gabled bay with attached brick chimney which was possibly a dining room or kitchen
originally. The house is set well back from the street.

ES
Ea

CONDITION:

The chimney bricks have been painted and the house chimney extended. What was presumably a
timber picket fence has been replaced in the 1920-30s with one clad with chain-wire.

CONTEXT:

Pyke Street terminates at, and faces, the creek and which is surrounded by semi-mature mainly ex-
otic planting and adjoins the planted reserve on the north.

LANDSCAPE:
Planting includes semi-mature oaks, brut little else in terms of period landscape.

SIGNIFICANCE:

George Day’s house, with its steep shingle-pitch roof and early joinery, is significant for its visible
antiquity compared 10 other houses in Woodend and elsewhere in the study area.

The house is among the oldest group surviving in near original external condition within the study
area. It has had a long association with one family, the occupations of which (railway worker, shop-
keeper) parallel Woodend township’s growth from its original railway station status to an impor-
tant commercial and service centre in the region.

P
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e

NAME: ROSENBERG PARK, LATER BEULAH AND WYCHWOOD ;\\-:3)
RIDDELL SUNBURY ROAD, RIDDELLS CREEK

TYPE: HOUSE, GARDEN

i
¥
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LOCAL GOYERNMENT AREA: GISBORNE

'ESMAP REFERENCE: 620 AMG: 2.94.58.50

SURVEY DATE: 19954
GISBORNE PARISH -
CROWN ALLOTMENTS: ABCDEL/22

LANDSCAPE UNIT: Ro6

HERITAGE RECOGNITION:

HISTORIC BUILDINGS REGISTER (R=Registered):

AUSTRALIAN HERITAGE COMMISSION (N=Nominated, R= Registered):
NATIONAL TRUST OF AUSTRALLA (C=Classified, R=Recorded):
NTAFILE NUMBER:

HISTORIC GARDENS [NVENTCRY:

CREATION DATE:
1889c
STUDY HERITAGE YALUE: R?

gMultipIe elements in a site may have differing henitage values, listed in element order) | -
mportant to the Shires of Romsey, Gisborne, Newham & Woodend

*Further investigation required

FIRST OR MAJOR OWNER/OCCUPIER:
LANGFORD, ROBERT ?

OTHER ASSOCIATIONS:
SALVATION ARMY

HISTORICAL THEMES REPRESENTED: 2,6

AGRICULTURAL AND PASTORAL (Evidence of pastoral and selection eras, changes in agricultural practices)
TOURISM & RETREATS (Formation of early retreats for the elite, the later guest houses, pieasure gardens, and recreation
areas; also the summer houses)

HISTORY:

George W Knight is said to hqve planted 10 acres of vines at this site in 1889 and is thought to have
also commissioned the house’. In fact Knight was in the area from the 1860s when he leased land
from JT Clarke. He also purchased most of the frecholds which make up this site in 1861, By the
early 1870s, at the latest, he had established a vineyard, orchard and a house on this site”. Knight
married Elizabeth Middleton with children Augustus (born Footscray, 1838), Lilly, Isabel, and
Dora (1865- 1870, at Gisborne) tracing his family’s path across the colgny, initially In connection
with the railway construction and later, like Amess, as an agriculturalist™ ' '

After,Knight, Charles Maplestone had the property, increasing the cultivated area from 30 o 40
acres”. [t was during this period that the vineyard was reported in the press in 1874

‘. This is the vinevard that produces the celebrated Ivanhoe red wine which is almost the only wine
commended by Dr Thuddichum. The place is under the superintendence of young Mr. Maplestone
who very kindly showed us over the place. Twenty-three acres of land are cultivated, 13 of which are
devoted to vines which are planted on gently-sloping hill sides. A watercourse divides the vineyard in
two pars...A few choice table grapes are grown on the verandah. At the back of the house are a
number of fine pear trees..In the cellar preparations were being made by a thorough cleansing and
sweetening with lime for the season’s crushing, which operation is performed by an immense
wooden lever raised by pulleys. A gigantic cask was near the door on which was chalked ‘Hermitage

1 Reid,p.109

2 ses Gisborne parish plan CS22
3 RBI8712,464

4 BDM Pioneers Index

5 RB1872-3,493

' 619



MACEDON RANGES CULTURAL HERITAGE AND LANDS CAPE STUDY

AR
600 galls.” . The whole of the last season’s crop was in the cellars...contained in nine 300 gal. casks.
Several men are employed and they are all needed in such a large extent of ground™.

The auctioneer, Joseph R Tuckett had the property in the 1880s, a likely period for the house recon-
struction. However it was after his death in ¢1838 that the new owner, Robert Langford (another
auctigneer), increased the annual valuation of what was now described as a villa, orchard and 40

acres”.

Langford's anctioneering business was in North Melbourne but he also operated a latge fish, poultry
and rabbig stall at the Flinders Street Fish Market (R Langford & Co, later Robert &James
Langford)”. Langford had arrived in Melbourne, with his family, from England in 1857, aged 8"
His business began at the city’s first fish market in c1866 (at Flinders and Swanston Streets) but
flourished as an auctioneer during the 1880s land speculation boom. He was a councillor in three
municipalities in this era, Hotham (now North Melbourne) AS mayor in 1883, Romsey Shire as pres-
ident in 61896 and Healsville Shire, as a councillor in 1892°. By the late 1890s, he too had gone 10

Bendigo™.

Langford owned it until 1899 when the Salvatian Army acquired it for their girls home, both
Langford and the Army calling it Rosenberg Park’. This official record concurs with the 189? War
Cry article’s announcement that the Army had purchased the property as a Girls’ Reformatory™. The
article described the house as a ‘splendid, substantial building, standing on 41 acres Of land with very
good accommodation and convenieaces. When it is overhauled and put into working order it will
undoubtedly take rank among the best institutions we have'.

Another article in 1900 titled the property as the Newest Girls’ Industrial Home and the work there,
‘Ruralising at Riddells Creek’™". A major reorganisation of this type of accommodation had in-
cluded the exchange of a girls’ home at Heidelberg for one at Murrumbeena and one at Pakenham
was replaced by Rosenberg Park, at Riddells Sreek, operating there from February 1900 under Cpt.
Mischel and later Cpt. Holborn, with 22 girls ™. This reorganisation had also coincided wﬁh the con-
struction of new headquarters, printery and barracks in Victoria Parade, East Melbourne ™.

‘The building is a substantial one, and close inspection reveals iis good quality. The garden and foot-
paths are in good order..". There was the entry hall which was brightly lit with a polished floor, a
work room (needle work etc.) which was large airy and bright, the beautifully fitted and finished
‘great’ dining room (meals, meetings), the officers’ sitting room and office, the ‘great’ kitchen with
‘spotless floors, shining grates, and the well-scrubbed tables’. Upstairs there were the dormitories
(one for 24, the other for 8) with their stained glass depicting biblical scenss and the officers’ (all

women) bedrooms””.

An etching with the article shows a substantial two-storey hipped roof house with a returning two-
level iron verandah and ornate cast-iron ornament to friazehbrackeis and balustrading. A detached
and trellised shade house is in the foreground of the view ™, Another view shows substantial out-
buildings to the west, one with 2 monitor roof profiie. '

A Cpt. Williams looked :iﬁer agriculture (crops and potatoes) and the animals, horses, cows, a pig,
roosters, ducks and hens*". The writer euiogised on the bitterness and evil experienced by some of
the inmates which was now fading under the firm but kind treatment received at the home. The
manager, Cpt. Holburn had alrzady experienced four years at rescue homes in Sydneg,ﬁNewcaszEc.
the Burwood Maternity Home, the Slum Post and the Working Womens’ Hotel, Sydney ™.

. . > .

q-d/\

. Town & Counmoy 23.3,1874 copy R&LDHS coliection
RB1883,337; RB1289 75-6
BD1884-5; WD1891-2

- qu:éih, CofV, V1,0483
ibid.
RB1899423 S :
RB1899,428 CA A-E,L22 etc; RB1900,427
st.s,p.‘fl reprint of 8.1899

ibid.
loc.cit 26.3.1900

1C1d.

see Butler & Burchett, East Melbourne Conservation Study
161d.

ibid.

ibid.

ibid.
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Captain Knight oversaw the kitchen at the Home, presenting another coincidental link (by name)
with the previous owner, George Knight. Captain Nellie Knight went on to z%chs'eve fame as 2 social
worker in the Army, eventualiy retiring from the Purga aboriginal settlement’.

The Salvation Army ran the girls home there until the Second War when a contingent of the Land
Army reputed stayed there while working at the nearby flax mill™. Dr Ormerod purchased it soon
after, staying there for some 40 vears”. . "

. Walter Smith’s history of Riddells Creek published in 1930s newspapers noted that Knight had
started the vineyard there and  spent a great amount on its development but to produce only
claret. The soil was too heavy. Having also trained as an engineer, Knight left the district to work as
an architect at Bendigo, as the municipal surveyor and designed his own house and another for tim-
ber merchant, Newcombe, at Quarry Elill in 1873 (Harkness St). He also designed the Quarry Hill
Comimon School in the same year. Later he developed an extensive nursery business™. His horticul-
tural pursuits parallel with that of Smith whose famous nursery lies opposite this site, across the
railway.

DESCRIPTION:

This is a large two-storey twe-colour brick {part painted) house with a part slate, part corrugated

iron roof, set in mature garden well back from road. -

- . - = | - hd - o * - .
There are gabled corrugated iron clad outbuildings. Given the long history of the site it is probable
that early structures associated with the winery are still on the site (an inspection is required).

The picket entry and flanking fence appear original (recently refurbished). -

CONDITION:

The house agpears 10 be externaily near complete, except for the painting of the brickwork (inspec-
tion required) ' : _

CONTEXT:

The house and garden lie at the end of a long drive among mature exotic trees. The property faces
the railway and 1s adjacent to the notable stone bridges along its path and west of Riddell’s historic
Cairn Hill property. : :

SIGNIFICANCE:

Rosenberg Park is significant as first the site of Knight's first major exploits in agriculture which was
eventually to win him fame at Bendigo. It 2150 potentially offers evidence of the large and early vine-
yard compiex which oace existed there.

The house is symbolic of the spoils of the land boom for a man, Langford, who had started in rural
produce marketing. Langford was remarkabie for his various municipal positions held in the 1380s-
1890s which included president of the Romsey Shire, making him locally and regionally prominent.
He was termed as one of Melbourne's best known businessmen.

The latter history of the house is also significant for its role in the Salvation Army’s work of reform-
ing wayward girls over a long period, paralleling with similar work carried out by orders  of the
Catholic Church (Good Shepherd convent) which were mainly in urban environs. The documenta-
tion of this work in #¥ar gy allows further historical interpretation of the site.

The house and cuibuildings may also be of architectural significance (inspection required).

1 Gibney & Smith p.401

2 Reid,p.109

3 Goss, p72 . o

4 press cutting atributed to Smith R&LDHS collection; ses Buicher & Flanders, Bendigo Fistaric Buildings

Ppo3,148,14%,152
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' :

t

NAME: HOLDEN BRIDGE AT JACKSONS CREEK ’i
RIDDELL SUNBURY ROAD, RIDDELLS CREEK

TYPE: BRIDGE
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MACEDON RANGES CULTURAL HERITAGE AND LANDSCAPE STUDY

LOCAL GOVERNMENT AREA: ROMSEY
ESMAP REFERENCE: 620 AMG: 2.95,58.43
SURVEY DATE: 19934

LANDSCAPE UNIT: R06

HERITAGE RECOGNITION:

HISTORIC BUILDINGS REGISTER (R=Registered):

AUSTRALIAN HERITAGE COMMISSION ({4 =Nominated, R=Registered):
NATIONAL TRUST OF AUSTRALLA (C=Classified, R=Recorded):
NTAFILE NUMBER:

HISTORIC GARDENS INVENTORY:

CREATION DATE:
1509

STUDY HERITAGE YALUE: S

%Muuiplc elements in a site may have differing heritage values, listed In element order)
mportant to Victoria .

FIRST OR MAJOR OWNER/OCCUPIER:
BULLA SHIRE

DESIGNER:
MONASH, JOHN

- BUILDER/CONTRACTOR:
REINFORCED CONCRETE & MONIER..

HISTORICAL THEMES REPRESENTED: 3
TRANSPORT AND TRAVEL (Evidence of track, road and rail routes)

HISTORY:

Tenders were called by the Bulla Shire secretary, AF Daniel, to erect 2 bridge over the Jacksons
Creek, with opltionai materiais of stone, wood or reinforced concrete, in May 1905, The site was
Holden’s Ford", The Reinforced Concrete & Mornier Pipe Construction Co. P/L tendered 867 for
the project at the end of May, using a reinforced concrete design by, the noted engineer and soldier,
John Monash”. The bridge was completed for testing in March 1910°.

Colin O'Connor in 200 Years of Concrete in Australia states that Monash’s 1907 Hindmarsh River
rajlwav bridge (SA) was ong of the first reinforced concrete girder bridges in Australia {in contrast
to the earlier Monier arch bridges such as the Melbourne Anderson St bridge) . Others foliowed,
one built over the Torrens River, Adelaide in 1908 to the design of J Bowman, and other bridges
such as the notable Laanecoorie Loddon River bridge 1911, the 1913 Reedy Crk bridge, Tungkillo
and the bridge over the Millbrook reservoir of 1915 (Monash consulting engineer)”. The Holden
Bridge appears to predate any other girder reinforced concrete bridge design in the State and is per-
haps the third of its type in the country.

Monash (1865-1931) was highly successful in three distinct areas, as an innovatory engineer, as a sol-
dier and as the first general manager of the State Electricity Commission. With JTN Anderson,
Monash gained the rights to use the Monier system of concrete construction but early mishaps, with
a bridge collapse at Bendigo (archeéi), meant Anderson’s departure for New Zealand and severe de-
E/l{etion of the company’s finances". Hence in 1903, Monash formed the Reinforced Concrete &
Monier Pipe Construction Co. Ltd. with 2n emphasis on building rather than bridge construction

Melbourne University Archives Monier collection #771
lglg drawing signed 25.5.09
ibid. K
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MACEDON RANGES CULTURAL HERITAGE AND LANDS &QPE 5TUDY

and achieved greatgr financial success. He travelled overseas in 1910 and had amassed some 30,000
in reserves by 1913, He was president of the Victorian  Institute of Engineers in that year and had
gained a place in the highest rungs of Melbourne society”.

From this point his army career aiso expanded, particularly with the onset of the First War, such
that by the 1920s Monash was ‘broadly accepted as the greatest living Australian..””. By then he had
sold his construction company 0 WR Hume (remaining a director) and had been appointed to
launch the SECin 1920.

DESCRIPTION:

This is a reinforced concrete single-span bridge with concrete and steel pipe balustrading which has
been bypassed and is now disused. Details which determine its age include the capped piers at either
end of the span.

CONDITION:

The concrete is spalling away from the reinforcing in minor patches and the balustrading is de-
formed or missing in places.

CONTEXT:

The bridge is sited south of Rosenberg Park and nearby new residential low density subdivision,
being isolated from the latter by the valley formation. Further to the north are the notable stone
arched railway bridges of the late 1850s which present an interesting contrast to the new technology
presented in this bridge.

LANDSCAPE:-

The nearby Jacksons Creek bank has a picturesque rock outcrop which is typical of the rugged
beauty of many sections of Deep and Jacksons Creeks in the study area. otherwise the surrounding
landscape is undulating exotic pasture.

SIGNIFICANCE: ' .
Holden Bridge is the first of a group of reinforced concrete girder bridges designed and built in the
State and the region by Monash's company. It is among the earliest group of road bridges in the
country, if not the earliest exampie. '

As well as the close associations with this nationally important figure (Monash), the bridges present
the first examples of a new technology which was particularly well-suited to the deep creek valleys of
the area which were all prone to flooding, causing great siresses on any bridge structures.

1 ibid, - -
2 ibid.

3 ibid.
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NAME: BRIDGES, ECHUCATO MELBOURNE RAILWAY
RIDDELLS CREEK, RIDDELLS CREEK

ol
sHO 215 7)

TYPE: BRIDGES, RAILWAY
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MACEDON RANGES CULTURAL HERITAGE AND LANDSCAPE STUDY

LOCAL GOVERNMENT AREA: ROMSEY
" ESMAP REFERENCE: 620 AMG: 2.94,58.51
SURVEY DATE: 19534

LANDSCAPE UNIT: NRC

PRECINCT:
Riddells Cresk Landscape Civic & Residential

HERITAGE RECOGNITION:

HISTORIC BUILDINGS REGISTER (R=Registered):

AUSTRALIAN HERITAGE COMMISSION (N=Nominated, R=Registered): N
NATIONAL TRUST OF AUSTRALILA (C=Classifled, R=Recorded): C
NTAFILENUMBER:

HISTORIC GARDENS WNVENTORY:

CREATION DATE:

1861C
STUDY HERITAGE VALUE: § Lo

%Mu&tiple elements in a site may have differing heritage values, listed in element order)
mportant {0 Victoria .

FIRST OR MAJOR OWNER/OCCUPIER:
VICTORIAN COLONIAL GOVERNMENT

HISTORICAL THEMES REPRESENTED: 3
TRANSPORT AND TRAVEL (Evidence of track, road and rail routes)

HISTORY:

‘In June 1852 the Melbourne, Mt.Alexander and Murray River Railway Co. was promulgated to
build 2 main line of railway from Melbourne to Mt.Alexander and the River Murray, at Echuca and
a branch line 1o Williamstown. Its inability to raise adequate funds however led to its purchase by
the government in 1836 and to the formation of the Victorian Railways during the same year.

The Williamstown and the first section of the Echuca railway (to Sunbury) were opened simuita-
neously on January 13 1839. They were the {irst lines to be opened by the Victorian railways depart-
ment.

The balance of the Echuca rajlway was opened as follows:

Sunbury to Woodend 8.7.61

Woodend to Kyneton 25.4.62

Kyneton to Bendigo 21.10.62

Bendigo to Echuca 19.5.64°

The historic importance of the Echuca railway hinges on the number of extant structures dating
from the opening of the line. They include the Elmore/Elphinstone design for station buildings
which is peculiar to this line and the number and diversity of examples of the Carlsruhe group of
buildings. The line also includes the largest and most spectacular collection of early stone and iron
-viaducts. The use of available local building materials adds interest to these struciures. The con-
struction of the line during the 1860s is of {urther interest, in that it reflects such strategic economic
issues of the day as that of providing a rail outlet for the lucrative river trade of the north-western
plains and the New South Wales Riverina. The construction of the railway line and associated
- works, as the largest building enterprise in the Colony at the time, was the focus of the battle for im-
proved working conditions and the venue in 1859-1860 for a strike against the principle of sub- con-
tracting, for the direct importation of indentured German masons to undercut locally established
conditions and rates of pay, for a pariial alliance between German and local masons, and for the
final collapse of the established level of wages.

kY
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DESCRIPTION:

These two stone bridges lie west of the Riddells Creek railway station and span over the Riddell’s
Creeg valley and the Sunbury Road.
Other important buildings and features along the Echuca Melbourne railway line include:

‘Jacksons Creek Viaduct’

‘The Sunbury Bank,” commencement point Jacksons Creek
‘Clarkefield Goods Shed’

‘Bridge over creek on upside of Riddells Creek’
‘Riddells Creek Station’

‘Gisborne Station’

‘Macedon Station’

‘Macedon Bank and Water Tower’

‘Calder Highway Bridge’

‘Woodend Station’

‘Bridge over Creek,’ a short distance north of Woodend
‘Carlsruhe Station’ :
‘Kyneton Station’

‘Bridge over Creek,” near Kyneton

‘Coliban River Viaduct’

‘Malmsbury Station’

‘Daylesford Road Bridge’

‘Back Creek Viaduct’

‘Taradale Siation’

‘Elphinstone Station’

‘Elphinstone Tunnel’

‘Castlemaine Station’

‘Various Brick and Girder Bridges with Local Granite Trim’
‘Harcourt Station’

‘Bridge over Barker’s Creek’ :

‘Various Local Stone Embankment Abuiments and Dwarf Walls’
‘Big Hill Tunnel’

‘Kangaroo Flat Station’

‘Golden Square Station’

‘Bendigo Station’

‘Elmore Station’

‘Rochester Station’

}Echuca Station?’

-

SIGNIFICANCE:

The historic importance of the Melbourne Echuca railway and its components hinges on the num.
ber of extant structures dating from the opening of the line. They inciude the Elmore/Elphinstone
design for station buildings.which is-peculiar to this line and the number and diversity of examples of
the Carlsruhe group-ofstation buildings.

The line also includes the largest and most spectacular collection of early stone and iron viaducts.
The use of available local building materials adds interest 10 these siructures, The construction of
the line during the 13605 is of further interast, in that it reflects such strategic economic issues of the
day as that of providing a rail outlet for the lucrative river trade of the north-western plains and the
New South Wales Riverina. The construction of the railway line and associated works, as the largest -

‘building enterprise in the Colony at the time, was the focus of the baitle for improved working con-

ditions and the venue in 1859-1860 for a strike against the principle of sub- contracting, for the di-
rect importation of indentured German masons 10 undercut locally esiablished conditions and rates
of pay, for 2 partial alliance between German and local masons, and for the final collapse of the es-

tablished level of wages.

1 NTA citation

628



'

DON RANGES CULTURAL HERITAGE AND LANDSCAPE STUDY

MACE

LIGHT HILL
ROYAL PARADE, RIDDELLS CREEK

NAME

FARM COMPLEX

TYPE
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LOCAL GOVERNMENT AREA: ROMSEY
ESMAP REFERENCE: 620 AMG: 2.93,38.52
SURVEY DATE: 19934

LANDSCAPE UNIT: TGS

HERITAGE RECOGNITION:

HISTORIC BUILDINGS REGISTER (R=Registarzd):

AUSTRALIAN MERITAGE COMMISSION (N=Nominated, R=Registered):
NATIONAL TRUST OF AUSTRALLA (C=Classified, R=Recorded):
NTATILE NUMBER:

HISTORIC GARDENS INVENTORY:

CREATION DATE:
1880¢

STUDY HERITAGE VALUE: R?

&Mulu’ple elements in 2 site may have differing heritage values, listed in element order)

mportant to the Shires of Romsey, Gisborne, Newham & Woodend .
*Further investigation required _ Lo
FIRST OR MAJOR OWNER/OCCUPIER:

CARNIE, ALEX
OTHER ASSOCIATIONS:

PRIESTLEY,FR

HISTORICAL THEMES REPRESENTED: 2,5

AGRICULTURAL AND PASTORAL (Evidence of pastoral and selection eras, changes in ag:"icullural practices)
FORESTS AND FOREST INDUSTRY (Evidence of {orest industry and management}

HISTORY:

This was reputedly sawmiller, Alex Carniz's house built for his retirement late last centuryl. Carnie
was also leasing one of the Amess properties at Riddells Creek (see Bolinda Park) in the 1870s, pre-
sumably before he built